
 

FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM 

FEBRUARY 02, 2021 

9:00 AM 

AGENDA 

The Board of County Commissioners asks that all cell phones are turned off or placed on silent (vibrate) mode.  Any 
handouts (information) for distribution to the Commission must be submitted to the Board Secretary (Clerk’s 
Office) or to the County Coordinator on or before the Thursday prior to that Tuesday’s meeting.  Failure to do so 
will result in your removal from the agenda or a delay of any action relating to your request until a future 
meeting. 

Meeting Information 

To comply with CDC and Government social distancing requirements, the general public will not be 
allowed in the commission meeting room for this meeting; therefore, this Board of County Commission 
regular meeting will be accessible via livestream and Zoom.  Those wanting to view the meeting can 
use the livestream link (https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/) or go to Forgotten Coast TV's 
Facebook Page. The livestream feed will promptly start 5 minutes before the meeting commences.  You 
do not need a Facebook account to view Facebook live. Those wanting to participate during the 
meeting should use the Zoom log-in/call-in information provided below. There is a link to a list of 
videos and Getting Started Resources on the main "Agenda and Minutes" webpage for those 
unfamiliar with Zoom. If you are experiencing any issues with the livestream or Zoom, call (850) 653-
9783 extension 373 for assistance.  

To join Zoom via computer, use the link (https://zoom.us/j/92210739587) on the meeting date and 
time.  If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer or prefer to call, you can dial in 
for audio. Call (301) 715-8592 or (312) 626- 6799 or (929) 205-6099 and enter ID number 922 1073 
9587#. All attendees are muted by default. 

If you would like to speak during the meeting, you have the following options: 

First complete the virtual speaker card (https://www.franklincountyflorida.com/virtual-speaker-
card/). This card must be submitted to the County Commission Administrative Office prior to the start 
of the meeting in order for you to speak during the meeting. During "Public Comments" you may 
comment on a non-agenda item or a non-action agenda item for up to 3-minutes when recognized by 
the Chairman.  You may also address the Commission on an agenda action item for one minute (which 
may change based on the number of speakers waiting to comment) during the meeting after a motion 
has been seconded and you are recognized by the Chairman.   

Once recognized by the Chairman, if you are on Zoom with a computer or smart device select the 'raise 
hand' icon.  If you have dialed in to the meeting by phone press  *9 to raise your hand, then *6 to 
unmute. 

Public engagement is important to us, and use of Zoom for public participation is still a new process. 
We appreciate your understanding. 

1



Call to Order 

Prayer and Pledge 

Approval of Minutes 

A. January 19, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Payment of County Bills 

Public Comments 

This is an opportunity for the public to comment on a non-agenda item or a non-action agenda item.  When 
you are recognized to be heard by the Chairman, please adhere to the 3-minute time limit.   

Department Directors Report 

Superintendent of Public Works – Howard Nabors 

A. Informational Item 

1.  Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District Report (Agenda Packet) 

 

Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis 

A. Informational Item 

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled Report (Agenda Packet). 

 

Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell 

A. Action Item 

1.  Request the Board adopt and sign the attached resolution for the County Approved Local 
Mitigation Strategy (LMS). 

B. Informational Items 

1.  Franklin County has received a waiver for our match portion from Hurricane Hermine.  

2.  EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with 
FDEM and FEMA. Franklin County has two projects for Hurricane Sally. 

3.  Amanda Anthony and Jennifer Daniels passed the All Hazards Events class online with 
Texas A&M University on 01/28/21. Pamela Brownell is scheduled for the February Class. 

4.  Amanda Anthony attended and passed her G-300 Class 01/19/21 - 01/21/21. 

5.  EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable 
cloth mask throughout our community. We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and 
City of Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint 
Visitor Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents. We will continue 
this effort as long as supplies are available.  

6.  EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus. This 
includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, EMS, as 
needed. We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via 
Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

7.  EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19. We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

2



8.  EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This 
includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, etc. 
Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on the 
most beneficial repairs for Franklin County. We are in contact with our PDMG regularly 
regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. 
EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and 
Hurricane Sally. 

9.  Attached is a copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County as 
of 1/28/21 at 3:00 PM.    

Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand 

A. Informational Items 

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of identifying issues 
with coastal live oaks, soil sampling for pH test, injured wildlife assistance, and more. 

2. Extension Director participated in NW Extension district County Director virtual meeting 
to plan for 2021. 

3. Extension Director participated as a judge for the ABC School-wide spelling bee. 

4. Extension Staff assisted a UF student who received an internship during this past 
semester.  As part of her requirements, she needed to interview staff in an Extension office to 
learn about the role of Extension and responsibilities of various Extension faculty and staff. 
The interview was conducted virtually, using a video conferencing application. 

Sea Grant Extension: 

5. Extension Director assisted UF’s molluscan shellfish specialist during 2 days of field work 
on Wakulla and Franklin County oyster aquaculture leases.  Four cooperating growers are 
participating in a study to compare growth and survival of triploid oysters from two different 
parental lines (Louisiana and Florida Broodstock).  Temperature loggers have also been 
placed in growing bags to assess potential stressors that may be correlated with mortality 
events. 

6. Extension Director coordinated with Bay and Gulf Extension faculty to plan for this year’s 
volunteer Scallop Sitter program (FWC funded project to restore bay scallops in the Florida 
Panhandle) 

4-H Youth Development: 

7. Public speaking contest is underway in local schools, in preparation for the countywide 
contest.  Competition will take place virtually with students recording their speech and 
submitting a YouTube video for the judges.  County contest has a due date of February 12 for 
video uploads.  Winners will be announced shortly thereafter. 

Family and Consumer Sciences: 

8. Family Nutrition Program assistant continues to conduct in-person lessons in local schools, 
with required safety measures in place. 

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

9. Planning is underway for a 2021 Master Gardener course to be offered in the County. 

Library Director – Whitney Roundtree 

A. Informational Items 

3



1.  On Saturday, January 23rd, the Friends of the Franklin County Public hosted their annual 
soup, bread, and book sale fundraiser at the Eastpoint Branch. Thank you to the volunteers 
and all who attended for their continued support of the libraries. The event will be held again 
at the Carrabelle Branch on Saturday, February 20th at 10:00 AM. 

2.  A PT employee of the Carrabelle Branch has resigned due to health issues.  Since the 
applicant pool was still fresh and of good quality, I reached out to the previous applicants to 
see if they would be interested in the position. I reinterviewed applicants and an offer has 
been extended to a qualified candidate contingent upon successfully passing pre-employment 
drug screening and background check.  

3. Program Attendance: 

Eastpoint Branch: 

Story Time- 9 total Anime Club- 4 Book Chat – 6 Writer’s Forum- 5 Diabetes Awareness -1 

Carrabelle Branch: 

Book Chat- 4 Anime Club- 3 Makerspace- 3 Story Time- 0 

4.  Upcoming Events: 

                  Eastpoint Branch: 

Diabetes Awareness- First Tuesday of the month at 10:00 AM. Book Chat- First Tuesday of the 
month at 1:30 PM Story Time- 2nd and 4th Tuesday of the month at 3:30 PM. Anime 
Club-  2nd Thursday of the month at 4:00 PM. Writer’s Forum- Third Wednesday of the 
month at 1:00 PM. 

                  Carrabelle Branch:                                      

Book Chat- Fist Friday of the month at 1:30 PM.                                 Anime Club- 2nd Tuesday of 
the month at 4:00 PM.                      Story Time- 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of the month at 3:30 
PM.                          Makerspace- Third Thursday of month at 4:00 PM.  

Airport Manager -- Jason Puckett -- Report 

 

A. Informational Items 

1. The airport is fully operational with no issues to report at this time. I wanted to take a 
quick moment and say a big thank you for the equipment purchase that was approved last 
meeting. We should be receiving the much needed new Zero-Turn mower and new Gator XUV 
at any time now. This new equipment will be kept in the hangar adjacent to Centric Aviation. 

2. There is a FDOT grant that will be available in August, 2021 to purchase a new larger 
tractor and implements for the major mowing at the airport. I am attempting to secure 
funding for an equipment shed/enclosure so old and new equipment can be kept out of the 
elements etc…  

3. Please find below an update on the current projects.  There are fewer than normal projects 
ongoing right now since we completed and closed several grants last year and the FDOT 
removed the FY2021 funding due to COVID impacts to the state budgets. 

     A. Runway 6-24 Electrical Improvements:  The construction contact has been executed and 
the contractor is scheduled to start work soon.  This work includes the complete replacement 
of the Runway 6-24 edge lighting system. 

     B. Fuel Farm Replacement:  The County received TRIUMPH grant funds to replace the aged 
fuel farm and design with AVCON will begin as soon as the design task order is approved by 
TRIUMPH.  This project will evaluate three potential fuel farm locations to assist the County 

4



in selecting the ultimate location, two new 12,000-gallon tanks, entirely new fuel system, and 
self-serve card reader. 

     C. Apron Rehabilitation:  The County has an FDOT grant to rehabilitate the apron pavement 
in front of the FBO and along the east and west aprons.  As part of this project, the FAA and 
FDOT are requesting AVCON prepare an apron utilization study which will evaluate the 
current and future uses of the apron to confirm that all of the apron pavement is justified for 
federal and state funding. 

4. I am proud of our airport and the economic impact that it provides to Franklin County. We 
have a respected name in the aviation community and that speaks volumes to the hard work 
of all involved to make the airport the best it can be.  

CARES Act Consultant -- Traci Buzbee -- Update 

A. Informational Items 

1. After FDEM questioned the submitted payroll documents, we received additional 
documentation from the sheriff’s office to correct the Phase 1&2 submittal and the Phase 3 
request for reimbursement.   

2. We worked with our liaison last week and submitted the revised request for validation 
(Phase 1 & 2) 

3. We submitted the revised Phase 3 on Monday and had discussions with our FDEM liaison. 

4. We submitted the letter for an extension of the 2020 funds and have until Friday to submit 
a spend plan.  At this time, we do not think we will need the extension, but we will determine 
that by Thursday once the state has reviewed the RFR we submitted today.  FCSO also 
submitted additional documents that even if there is a question on some of the salaries that 
we submitted, we still have additional documents that we can compile and submit for the full 
allocation. 

5. Phase 1 & 2 - $952,074 (previously received). Phase 3 - $1,163,645 currently under review 
at the state.  Total $2,115,720. 

6. Funds spent to date as of 12-30-20 -- $910,023.26 (unsure if checks have been written in 
January). 

7.  Outstanding CARES expenses to be paid once you receive the rest of the funds: 

LCSO - Deese Elite $62,558 

LCSO – CAD system $224,835  

Carrabelle Public Safety Employees - $250,663.02 

Apalachicola Public Safety Employees - $393,093.85  

Remaining balance after the above expenses are paid: $274,546.87 

ARPC -- Evan Blythe & Josh Adams -- Presentation 

A. Mr. Blythe and Mr. Adams will present their findings on the Alligator Point Resiliency Study 
Presentation. 

 

Clerk of Courts – Michele Maxwell – Report 

Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator – Erin Griffith – Report 

A. Action Items 

5



1. Summary of January 29th Conference Call with US Treasury Regarding RESTORE Projects 
and authorization to accept planning grant once awarded 

Chairman Ricky Jones, Alan Pierce, and I joined Melissa Beaudry and Heather Pullen, Langton 
Consulting, for an hour long conference call with the new Bureau Chief, Ms. Maureen Klover 
of the US Treasury RESTORE program.  Ms. Klover initiated the call because she wanted to 
hear from local governments on what needed to be improved in the RESTORE program to 
make it more responsive to the recipients. 

Alan started off the call with a short history of Franklin County’s efforts to get projects 
through the RESTORE system.  Ms. Klover seemed receptive to the comments and is working 
to respond to the requests to Treasury below:  

A. Permission for Franklin County to begin advertising for planning consultants on the 
dune restoration project and the St. George Island Stormwater project while Treasury 
finishes the review of various documents that Langton will be submitting.  If Treasury 
will allow Franklin County to advertise while they are reviewing documents this will 
save one month’s time. 

B.  Permission to submit an amendment to the MYIP (Multi-Year Implementation Plan) 
for construction funds while the Planning grant is being utilized.  If allowed by Treasury, 
this will save months of waiting for Treasury to approve funds that have already been 
authorized for Franklin County. 

C. Permission to make Budget amendments between the two construction grants at a 
staff level without having to get a full MYIP amendment.  If Treasury allows for the staff 
level approval, then the Board would have latitude to make budget amendments based 
upon what is in the best interest of the county without going through a full Treasury 
approval process. 

Ms. Klover is checking with her superiors at Treasury regarding the requests above and will 
let Franklin County know answers as soon as possible.  In the event the County receives the 
go ahead and the planning grant is formally approved by Treasury, I recommend the Board 
authorize the Chairman to accept the Planning Grant, and to authorize advertising for planning 
consultants.  This will allow for the project to move forward as quickly as possible. 

2. Extension of FEMA Funded Recovery Professional Services Agreement 

In late 2017, Franklin County solicited an RFQ for engineering services relative to FEMA 
Funded Recovery Efforts. Franklin County entered into an agreement with Dewberry 
Engineers to provide this service in February of 2018.  The agreement allowed for two (2) 
year continuing services contract extensions from the date of signature with an option of 
renewals for up to (5) years total.  A draft letter of authorization to extend the agreement as 
well as a copy of the original agreement and RFQ is attached to this report. 

I recommend the Board authorize the extension of the professional services agreement for the 
additional two year term and allow the chairman to sign the letter of authorization. 

3.Island View Park – FEMA Funded Recovery Task Order  

Island View Park opened as a new park in August of 2018.  Just two months later, Hurricane 
Michael devastated the area and the park was almost completely destroyed.   The 
construction of this park was handled directly by the various state agencies and upon 
completion Franklin County was responsible for the maintenance and operation of the 
park.  After Hurricane Michael, the original contractor who did the project, Woods Partners 
Inc., assisted with the development of the damage descriptions and cost assessment for the 
FEMA restoration project.  The total estimated project cost for the restoration is 
$1,325,471.  Included in the cost estimate is approximately $421,000 in mitigation work 

6



which will make the park more resilient to damage from future storms.   A copy of the project 
scope which outlines the damages and mitigation work is attached.  

Dewberry Engineers has submitted a Task Order in the amount of $144,476 to do the 
necessary design, permitting work, draft bid specifications, construction administration and 
inspection services to see the project to completion.  This proposal is consistent with the 
FEMA cost curve specification for this type of project.   

I recommend the Board authorize the acceptance of Dewberry’s Task Order #7 for the Island 
View Park restoration project. 

4.  Acceptance of Task Order for Airport Fuel Farm Project 

Early last week, AVCON’s Task Order #7 for the planning, design, bidding and construction 
phase services for the Airport Fuel Farm Project was submitted to Triumph for their 
approval.  Franklin County received notification late yesterday that the Task Order had been 
approved.  Once this Board authorizes the acceptance of AVCON’s Task Order #7, the design 
work will take about 90 days to complete and then the county can proceed with advertising 
for construction.  The total cost of this project is estimated to be $1,084,000 with Triumph 
funding $1,059,000 and $25,000 being paid by the Airport Fund.  This project should be on 
track for completion by June 30th, 2021. 

I recommend the Board authorize the acceptance of AVCON’s Task Order #7 for the Airport Fuel 
Farm Project. 

5. Employee Job Classification and Pay Plan Study 

At the first meeting in January, the Board expressed interest in the development of a job 
classification and pay plan for County employees.  After doing some research, I have found a 
firm in Tallahassee that is an industry expert in the field.  Evergreen Solutions, LLC has 
performed over 600 of these type of studies for numerous governmental agencies in 46 states 
including the job classification and pay plan for Gulf County and is currently working on 
projects with Wakulla and Leon counties.  Evergreen’s services may be of interest as data is 
used from peer organizations within a region to compare pay and benefits.  Evergreen can 
also offer suggestions of phased implementation of a pay plan to fit within budgetary 
constraints.   

If there is interest from the Board, I recommend asking a representative from Evergreen to 
attend the next meeting to give a brief synopsis of the process, objectives, outcomes, an estimate 
of cost, and answer any questions that the Board may have.   

B. Informational Item 

1. Advertisement for Alligator Drive Hurricane Damage Repairs 

The bid solicitation for the Alligator Drive Hurricane Damage Repairs was in the newspaper 
last week and posted on the county website.  The project includes 1,250 linear feet of new 
roadway construction, sheetpile walls with concrete cap, concrete shoulder, water line 
replacement, striping, stormwater, debris removal, and grassing along Alligator Drive (CR 
370) beginning around Tom Roberts Road and ending around George Vause Road.  Bids can 
be submitted to the Clerk’s Office through 4:30 p.m. on March 1stand will be opened at the 
March 2nd commission meeting. The bid solicitation is attached. 

County Coordinator – Michael Morón – Report 

A. Action Items 

1.  Duck Hunting Update:  At a recent meeting, the Board discussed complaints received 
regarding the influx of out of area duck hunter’s destruction of local resources such as the 
recently revived grass beds, the illegal practice of exceeding the allowed bag limits, and the 

7



total disregard of local duck hunting customs.  Instead of sending a letter, I contacted the 
department directly and spoke to Mr. George Warthen, FWC’s Director of Hunting and Game 
Management, about the Board concerns.  After meeting with his regional director and staff, 
Mr. Warthen explained that FWC officers do have access to the shallow water and are doing 
target enforcement on duck hunters.  They are watchful to ensure no natural resources are 
being destroyed by any of the hunters.  He also explained that this is a state-wide problem, 
and FWC is looking for a long-term solution to hunting issues.  In addition, there is an 
amendment that will be presented to the FWC Commission at this month’s meeting that will 
create a “buffer zone” between hunting and residential areas. What presents an issue for the 
agency is dealing with the confrontational problems between the local and out of town 
hunters, but the officers will continue to educate all hunters in order to try and reduce the 
confrontations.  Mr. Warthen is willing to meet with any Commissioner, including going out 
on the water, to discuss these and other FWC concerns.  Board discussion and direction. 

2.  Vaccine Distribution Update:  At your last meeting the Board discussed vaccine 
distribution issues in the County and directed me to send a letter to Governor DeSantis 
requesting additional vaccine units on a weekly basis, but a lot has transpired state-wide 
regarding additional vaccine doses since that meeting. Of significance, is the Small County 
Coalition’s (SCC) executive meeting held to address some of the same concerns raised by this 
Board at the last meeting.  Attached is the SCC’s Executive Summary on Vaccine Program 
Observations and Suggestions Zoom meeting held on January 21st.  Last week SCC’s 
President, Chris Doolin, discussed how the Board’s concerns aligned and how the Board could 
support SCC in its efforts to secure additional vaccines for small rural counties like Franklin, 
especially those that are fiscally constrained.  Mr. Doolin agreed to word a draft letter, which 
is attached to this report, the County could send to FDEM Director Mr. Jared Moskowitz 
supporting SCC and the Florida Association of Counties efforts to secure an equitable 
allotment of vaccines in Franklin County.  Board discussion and action to authorize the 
Chairman’s signature on the letter to (FDEM) Director Moskowitz. 

On a related COVID matter, since the beginning of January 2021, COVID positivity trends in 
Franklin County have been above the recommended 10%, which represents significant 
community spread and increased exposure to our most vulnerable populations.  The first two 
weeks of January 2021 reported a 20% positivity trend, with 155 new positive cases out of 
761 people tested.  From January 15th through January 28th positivity trends are still above 
the recommended benchmark at 16% with 118 new cases.  There have been 5 new COVID-19 
documented deaths which totals 10 deaths in the County.  Positivity trends and COVID-19 
documented deaths are monitored using Florida Department of Health data.  I provide this 
information to the Board and public so that everyone continues to follow the CDC guidelines 
of washing your hands, avoiding large crowds especially inside buildings and poorly 
ventilated areas, and wearing a mask whenever you are out in public.   

3.  New EOC Building:  The Board has been discussing the need for a new EOC since Hurricane 
Michael.  During the last legislative session, the County received approximately $100,000 for 
design and engineering of a new EOC, which was decided at a previous meeting, would be 
located at the airport.  Attached (Agenda Packet) to my report is a 4,884 square foot floor 
plan concept for the new EOC.  Discussed at the last meeting, the project architect estimates a 
cost of $300 per square foot for total building cost of $1,465,200.00.  This cost does not 
include other expenses such as office furniture, IT equipment, a generator, site work, parking 
area, stormwater, water and sewer hook ups, etc.  Before proceeding with the actual design, 
Dewberry, the project engineers, would like the Board to agree to a final concept and square 
footage.  Board discussion and direction. 

4.  Weems EMS Grant:  Weems is seeking Board approval for what has been referred to as the 
EMS “Baby” grant.  The $813 grant amount, with an additional $58.66 from last year’s grant, 

8



will be used to send one paramedic to a Critical Care Paramedicine program.  Board action to 
authorize the Chairman signature on the Resolution for the State of Florida EMS $813 Grant. 

5.  Tax Collector Budget Option:  After every election of a new or re-elected tax collector, the 
Florida Department of Revenue (DOR) offers the tax collector the option of becoming/ 
remaining a budget or fee officer for the next four years.  The Franklin County Tax Collector 
has always been a budget officer, adhering to the budget policies and procedures of the BOCC, 
and Mr. Watson would like to remain a budget officer. In order to keep the budget officer 
status, DOR requires a resolution with the Chairman’s signature.  Board action to authorize 
the Chairman’s signature on the DOR Resolution to keep the Tax Collector as a budget officer. 

6.  Sheriff’s 911 Grants:  Due to pending deadlines, the Sheriff’s Office asked the Chairman to 
sign two 911 grant agreements prior to today’s meeting.  The first is the annual maintenance 
grant totaling $34,366.21 and the second is a GIS Data Support grant totaling 
$188,270.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature on both grant agreements. 

7.  CareerSource Agreements:  As stated in Mrs. Kim Bodine’s attached cover letter, “Local 
workforce development areas that receive an initial designation by the Governor may be 
granted a subsequent designation if, for the most two recent program years, the local area 
performed successfully and sustained fiscal integrity, and in the case of a local area in a 
planning region, met the regional planning requirements as described in WIOA Sec. 106.  The 
chief elected official must submit a request for subsequent designation (Attachment A) to 
CareerSource Florida and DEO every two years beginning July 1, 2017.  The application to 
request subsequent designation is due by April 15 of the renewal year.”  Attached is the 
Application for Subsequent Local Workforce Development Area Designation, the Local 
Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification, and the Local Workforce 
Development Area Designation for the Chairman’s signature.  Even though these are standard 
documents signed by the Board every two years, if the Board authorizes the Chairman’s 
signature it will be contingent on Attorney Shuler’s review of the documents.  Board action to 
authorize the Chairman’s signature on the CareerSource documents contingent on Attorney 
Shuler’s review and approval. 

8.  CARES Act Funds Extension Letter: During Ms. Traci Buzbee’s report, the need for the 
County to request an extension of the agreement (Agreement Y2314) between Franklin 
County Board of County Commissioners and the Florida Division of Emergency Management 
for the CARES Act funding beyond the January 29thdeadline was addressed.  This extension 
allowed Ms. Buzbee to submit a revised spend plan on Friday, February 5th.  Chairman Jones 
signed the extension request.  Board action to ratify the Chairman’s signature on the CARES 
Act extension letter. 

9.  Building Inspector Status:  In December Mr. Steve Paterson received his Florida State 
Building Inspector certification.  That was one of the main reasons Mr. Garry Millender was 
able to request to change his employment status as the County’s Building Official from an 
employee to a contractor.  When the Board approved that change, I should have requested an 
increase in Mr. Patterson’s base annual salary to $40,000 since, with his certification, his role 
and responsibility in the Building Department would increase.  The Building Department’s 
budget is fee based, not funded from ad valorem taxes.  Board action to authorize the increase 
in Mr. Paterson’s salary to $40,000 as the County’s Building Inspector. 

B. Informational Items 

1.  Airport Project Time Extension:  Last week, John Collins (AVCON) informed me that the 
Runway 6-24 Lighting Rehabilitation project contractor, TCA Electrical Construction, 
requested a 90-day extension of the project time due to delays in receiving materials from 
suppliers because of COVID.  FDOT will extend this grant which is set to expire on April 

9



30th if the contractor is impacted by COVID, therefore, I authorized Mr. Collins to request this 
extension.  I will update the Board on the outcome of the extension request. 

2.  Building Department New Hires:  Until further notice the Building Department will be 
closed to the public (walk-ins & phone calls) on Fridays at 12 noon to allow staff to process 
permit applications.  Hopefully, with our new hires starting this month, Mr. Chance White 
started yesterday, and Ms. Tanicia Pugh will start on February 15th, we will be in better 
shape by month’s end. 

3.  CDBG Report:  Attached to the agenda packet is an information report from Mrs. Deborah 
Belcher.  If you have any questions regarding the report, Mrs. Belcher asked that you give her 
a call. 

4. ARPC Meeting Notes:  Attached to my report are the January 2021 Board Notes for the 
Apalachee Regional Planning Council. 

5.  COVID-19 LSE:  The Chairman has signed, as authorized by the Board, COVID-19 Local 
State of Emergency Declarations for the weeks starting January 4th, 11th, 18th, and 25th. 

6.   ANERR Burn: The Apalachicola National Estuarine Research Reserve is planning a burn at 
the Nick’s Hole section of property within the St. George Island Plantation on Thursday, 
February 4th at 9 am ET.  A total of 50 acres will be burned.  A map is attached. 

County Attorney – Michael Shuler – Report 

Commissioners’ Comments 

Adjournment 

Any person who wishes to appeal a decision made by the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners, with respect to 
any matter considered at the meeting, must have a record of the proceedings.  He or she may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made 

10



FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
REGULAR MEETING 

COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION MEETING ROOM 
JANUARY 19, 2021 

9:00 AM 
MINUTES 

 
Commissioners Present:  Ricky Jones-Chairman, Bert Boldt, II-Vice-Chairman, Joseph 
Parrish, and Jessica V. Ward 
Commissioners Absent: Noah Lockley 
Others Present: Michele Maxwell-Clerk of Court, Michael Shuler-County Attorney, Michael 
Moron—County Coordinator, and Jessica Gay-Deputy Clerk to the Board 

 

Call to Order  

  Chairman Jones called the meeting to order.  
Prayer and Pledge  

  Commissioner Boldt said a prayer followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Approval of Minutes 

A. January 5, 2021 Regular Meeting 

B. January 5, 2021 Workshop 
 
On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous vote of the 
Board present, it was agreed to approve the minutes from the meetings held on January 5, 2021.  
Motion carried 4-0. 

Payment of County Bills  

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt, and by unanimous vote of the 
Board present, it was agreed to approve payment of the County Bills. Motion carried 4-0. 

Public Comments 

 
Mr. Steve Kirshenbaum from St. George Island, thanked the Board for their support of the airport and 
invited the Board to take a tour of the airport.  
 
Mr. Ted Mosteller thanked the Board for their support of the airport and invited the Board to visit the 
airport.  
 
Mr. Gordon echoed the previous speakers’ comments as well as thanked Commissioner Boldt for his 
recommendation to recreate the airport advisory committee.  

Department Directors Report 

Superintendent of Public Works – Howard Nabors 

A. Information Item 

1. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (see attached documents) 

Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis 

Mr. Davis asked the Board to approve an amendment to the Solid Waste Management Grant which would 
reflect a $4,454.60 increase for budgets in the Revised Work Plan revising the total Work Plan budget to 
$98,204.60. 11

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 2 of 8 
 

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt to approve an amendment to 
reflect a $4,454.60 increase for budgets in the Revised Work Plan revising the total Work Plan 
budget to $98,204.60. Motion carried 4-0. 

A. Information Item 

1. Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled (see attached report) 

Mr. Davis along with the Board discussed the county recycling program, replacement of the St. George Island 
swing set, and the St. George Island bathroom projects.  Mr. Moron noted that the bathroom project has been 
delayed due to the slow delivery of materials. 

Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell 

Mr. Alan Pierce discussed the proposed Emergency Operations Center with the Board noting that the recent 
quote received from the contractor was $300 per square foot. At this price, the original $1.5 million dollars 
requested from the State may not be sufficient to complete the project. Mrs. Brownell noted that a larger 
building may better accommodate our growing community. Commissioner Parrish would like the project to 
continue moving forward and for the County to continue pursuing funds from the State.  

A. Information Items 

1. 1/15/21 EOC Staff distributed COVID care bags and mask to members of our venerable 
population from Mission by the Sea Church in Alligator Point. 

2. 1/13/21 EOC Staff and CERT members assisted Sherriff’s Department in the missing 
person search and rescue. 

3. 1/7/21 EOC Staff distributed COVID care bags and mask to members of our venerable 
population from Chillas Hall in Lanark Village. 

4. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with 
FDEM and FEMA. 

5. EOC Staff continue to participate in the NOAA Tropical Weather Training. 

6. EOC has submitted our New LMS Plan and corrections to the state and are awaiting 
approval. 

7. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 
mask throughout our community. We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents. We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available. 

8. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus. This 
includes hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, and EMS, 
as needed. We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH 
via Alert Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

 
9. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19. We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

10. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This 
includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, etc. 
Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on the 
most beneficial repairs for Franklin County. We are in contact with our PDMG regularly 
regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. 
EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and 
Hurricane Sally. 

12

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 3 of 8 
 

Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand 

A. Informational Items 

General Extension Activities: 

1. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on the topics of identifying leaf- 
spot disease on Pittosporum shrubs, weed identification and treatment options and 
landscaping pruning practices. 

2. Extension Director participated in a planning call regarding removal of Hurricane Michael 
debris from the marshes around Apalachicola Bay. 

Sea Grant Extension: 

3. Extension Director participated in a scheduled meeting of the Apalachicola Bay System 
Initiative Community Advisory Board. 

4. Extension Director participated in a full-day seafood HACCP training that was conducted 
virtually on the web. This is a new development in HACCP training which allows processors 
to get this training without having to travel to an in-person class. 

4-H Youth Development: 

5. Public speaking contest is underway in local schools, in preparation for the countywide 
contest. Competition will take place virtually with students recording their speech and 
submitting a YouTube video for the judges. County contest has a due date of February 12 for 
video uploads. Winners will be announced shortly thereafter. 

Family and Consumer Sciences: 

6. Family Nutrition Program assistant continues to conduct in-person lessons in local schools, 
with required safety measures in place. 

Agriculture/Home Horticulture: 

7. The Master Gardener program is packaging and labeling small packets of various vegetable 
seeds to distribute free-of-charge at local libraries. 

TDC Administrator – John Solomon – Report 

A. Information Items 

1. Collections Report: October Collections were $147,542.08, which is a 64.56% increase 
over October 2019. An increase of $57,881.80 this is the highest amount ever collected by the 
Franklin County TDC in the month of October. 

 
2. The TDC Board approved creating and placing 20 Consolidated Beach Access signs. The 
beach access points in the county have many smaller signs advising the public of the rules on 
our beaches. These new signs will consolidate all of those on one sign and leave room for any 
additional information that may need to be added at later date. 

 

Weems CEO -- David Walker & Health Department Administrator -- Sarah Quaranta -- Update 

Mr. Walker and Ms. Quaranta gave an update on COVID-19 vaccinations & vaccine supplies. 

Ms. Sarah Quaranta updated the Board on the distribution of COVID-19 vaccinations. The Franklin County 
Health Department coordinated with Weems Memorial Hospital in order to provide vaccinations as quickly 
and safely as possible. An online pre-registration portal has been created to allow citizens 65 and older to 
register for the vaccine as it becomes available. Ms. Quaranta reported that overall around 813 vaccines have 
been administered in Franklin County. The Board asked questions about the pre-registration process. Mrs. 
Nicole Sandoval confirmed the appointment only vaccinations were given in the order as they are registered 

13

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 4 of 8 
 

through the portal, and as the vaccinations become available to the County. Commissioner Ward noted this is 
a federal vaccine and cannot be given based on County residency. Commissioner Boldt said it appeared to be 
an availability issue and not a distribution issue, praising the health care workers for the distribution of 
vaccinations thus far. Commissioner Parrish would like a letter written to the Governor on behalf of the 
Commissioners to request additional doses of the vaccine.  

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt for Mr. Moron to draft a letter 
to Governor Ron DeSantis requesting a larger allocation of the COVID-19 vaccination for Franklin 
County.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Commissioner Boldt suggested all five commissioners sign the letter. However, Attorney Shuler noted that 
Commissioner Lockley is not in attendance and suggested the language be ‘by unanimous vote of the Board 
present’. 

Texas A&M -- Update 

Texas A&M representatives provided a close out report on the Weems Technical Assistance Grant. 

Ms. Bree Watzak, Dr. Nancy Dickey and Ms. Andrea Brewer joined the meeting via Zoom to give the Board a 
brief review of the program over the past year. The Center for Optimizing Rural Health works with rural 
facilities, their provider and their communities to improve the quality of care, maintain access to care, and 
address the challenges to small hospitals and the towns the serve. They offer three levels of support: on-site, 
remote facilitated assistance, and self-directed access to best practices, resources, and tools.  

Board of Adjustment – Cortni Bankston – Report 

A. Consideration of a request for a 20-foot variance for a well and septic from the 100-foot 
county requirement. Property described as 170 Beacon Street, Carrabelle Beach, Franklin 
County, Florida. Request submitted by Linda Parker, applicant. (State minimum setback from 
well and septic is 75 feet) 

ABOA recommended approval. 

Commissioner Parrish noted that he did not see a hardship, and that there was plenty of room for the well to 
be placed 100 foot from septic. Chairman Jones said that the gentleman who installed the well was not aware 
of the County ordinance. Mrs. Amy Kelly explained to the Board the permit had been issued correctly and this 
was no fault to the homeowner. Mrs. Paige Richards, daughter of property owner Linda Parker, spoke to the 
Board via Zoom. Mrs. Richards explained that the appropriate spot had been marked on the permit, however, 
the contractor had not looked at the permit. Mrs. Paige said that her 80 year old mother had waited since 
October to move in to her new home. Commissioner Ward said she did not feel it was fair to punish Ms. 
Parker for the mistake. Chairman Jones said if the Board approved the variance, they should also consider 
changing the ordinance so that it is the same as the State requirements which is a minimum setback from well 
to septic of 75 feet.  

 

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Parrish to revisit and revise existing 
ordinance related to wells and septic tanks. Motion carried 4-0. 

Attorney Shuler said essentially we will be considering cancellation of the local ordinance and default to the 
State standards.  

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt to approve a 20-foot variance 
for a well and septic from the 100-foot county requirement on property described as 170 Beacon 
Street, Carrabelle Beach, and Franklin County, Florida, submitted by Linda Parker. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Public Hearings 10:30 AM (ET) 

Postponed until Tuesday, February 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (ET) 

Since there will not be a full Board in attendance at regular meeting scheduled for Tuesday, January 
14

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 5 of 8 
 

19, 2021, the applicant and County mutually agreed to continue the Sapp's Land Use Change Requests 
and Re-Zoning Requests Public Hearings to Tuesday, February 16, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (ET). The 
County anticipates that all Commissioner will be in attendance at this meeting. 

 

A. 10:30 a.m. (ET): Consideration of a request for Land Use Change of a 6.08 acre parcel lying in 
Section 22, Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2514 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, 
Florida from Residential to Commercial. Request submitted by Jamey and Beverly Sapp, 
applicants.  

B. 10:35 a.m. (ET): Consideration of a request to Re-Zone a 6.08 acre parcel lying in Section 22, 
Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2514 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from 
R-2 Single Family Mobile Home to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Request submitted by Jamey 
and Beverly Sapp, applicants. 

C. 10:40 a.m. (ET): Consideration of a request for Land Use Change of a 10 acre parcel lying in 
Section 22, Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2536 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, 
Florida from Agriculture and Residential to Commercial. Request submitted by Jamey and 
Beverly Sapp, applicants. 

D. 10:45 a.m. (ET): Consideration of a request for a Re-Zoning of a 10 acre parcel lying in Section 
22, Township 6 South, Range 4 West, 2536 Highway 67, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida 
from A-2 Forestry Agriculture and R-2 Residential to C-3 Commercial Recreation. Request 
submitted by Jamey and Beverly Sapp, applicants. 

 

Clerk of Courts – Michele Maxwell – Report   

Madam Clerk did not have a report for the Board.  

Special Projects Coordinator – Alan Pierce – Report 

 

Mr. Alan Pierce reported the County is opening bids for the FEMA repair and the road should be protected 

before into hurricane season.  

Mr. Pierce said he would like to schedule a conference call with the Board Chair and the new director of the 

Gulf Restoration Project in order to address any complaints. Chairman Jones agreed and Mr. Pierce will 

coordinate the call. 

County Coordinator – Michael Morón – Report 

A. Action Items 

1. City of Apalachicola ARPC Appointment: As requested by the Board at an earlier meeting, 
the City of Apalachicola has recommended City Commissioner Despina George to serve as the 
County’s municipal representative on the Apalachee Regional Planning Council 
(ARPC). Carrabelle’s Mayor has served in this role for the last four years. Usually, the County 
rotates a representative from the cities every two years. Board action to appoint City 
Commissioner Despina George as the County’s municipal representative on ARPC. 
 
On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt to appoint City 
Commissioner Despina George as the County’s municipal representative on ARPC. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

 
15

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 

2. Extension of COVID-19 Leave Policy: The Federal FFCRA Act which mandated large 
employers provide eligible employees two weeks of emergency paid sick leave due to COVID- 
19 and the tax credits for private employers for such leave expired on December 31, 
2020. On December 21st, Congress passed the Consolidated Appropriations Act (CAA) of 2021 
which extended the tax credits for private employers who voluntarily provide the leave 
through March 31, 2021. As the pandemic is still ongoing, it is at the discretion of the Board if 
the county will provide an equivalent benefit equal to the unused remainder of the FFCRA 
emergency paid sick leave through March 31st, 2021 for employees who had not previously 
used all of the two weeks’ time that was provided if an employee was unable to work, including 
able to telework, because the employee: 1. was subject to a Federal, State or local quarantine 
or isolation order related to COVID-19 2. had been advised by a health care provider to self-
quarantine related to COVID-19 or 3. was experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and was seeking 
a medical diagnosis. Employees would still need to complete the Emergency Paid Sick Leave 
Request Form for eligible reasons 1-3 above to utilize this leave through March 31st. Does the 
BOCC want to authorize providing an equivalent benefit equal to the unused remainder of the 
FFCRA emergency paid sick leave through March 31st, 2021? 
 
On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Ward to authorize 
providing an equivalent benefit equal to the unused remainder of the FFCRA emergency 
paid sick leave through March 31st, 2021. Motion carried 4-0. 
 

3. Airport Equipment Purchase: Jason Puckett, Airport Manager, would like approval to 
purchase a John Deere Gator along with a 45-gallon bed Sprayer for the Gator and a John 
Deere Zero Turn Diesel Mower. The repair and maintenance cost on the current equipment 
has become excessive and is not the best use of the airport funds. The equipment will be 
purchased at State contract pricing (Sourcewell Ground Maintenance) for $33,698.17 from 
Ag-Pro in Tallahassee and paid with Airport funds. Board action to approve the purchase of 
the ground maintenance equipment for the Airport at a total cost of $33,698.17. 

  

On motion by Commissioner Ward, seconded by Commissioner Boldt to approve the 
purchase of the ground maintenance for the Airport at a total cost of $33,698.17. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

4. Airport Advisory Committee: At your last meeting, the Board directed me to start the 
creation an Airport Advisory Committee (AAC) process. I recommend that each Commissioner 
appoint someone from their district to serve on the AAC, in the same manner and makeup of 
the Planning and Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment, and the Hospital Board. This 
would allow a diverse and cross-section of members that would recommend ideas and projects 
to this Board. In addition, the Airport Manager and a FBO representative could sit on the Board 
as ex-officio non-voting members. As you are seeking volunteers to serve on the AAC, the 
Board should authorize Attorney Shuler to create by-laws to govern the AAC. Board discussion 
and direction on creating the AAC and authorize Attorney Shuler to create by-laws to govern the 
AAC. 

 

Chairman Jones inquired as to whether the new advisory committee could use the previous 
committee’s bylaws. Attorney Shuler will research the previous committee’s bylaws, if any and 
determine as to whether than can be revised or new bylaws will need to be drafted. The Board 
discussed the process of appointing committee members to serve and all concurred they 
would like an individual appointed from each district. Commissioner Boldt strongly preferred 
a designee with aviation experience and Chairman Jones preferred someone with economic 
development background. The Board unanimously agreed to send a list of qualifications to Mr. 

16

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 7 of 8 
 

Moron in order for him to draft an ad for the newspaper.  

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt authorizing 
Attorney Shuler to create bylaws to govern the Aviation Advisory Committee. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

5. CDBG Homeowner Application: “A late application for Eastpoint Wildfire CDBG mobile 
home replacement was submitted by Brenda Lewis, whose mobile home at 659 Wilderness 
Road was damaged in the fire. I advertised for proposals for single wide mobile homes of 
quality comparable to what has been purchased through the CDBG program, with a 
requirement that all work be completed by the April 30, 2021 CDBG grant expiration 
date. We included an “unspecified site” proposal option, in case something like this came up. 
Proposals received 12/29/2020 included: Clayton Homes of Panama City, Aspen model, 
$84,674 with no extra cost to demolish an existing home, and Ironwood Homes of Perry, 
Model U-5763E, $83,975.12 plus $3,500 for demolition. Clayton Homes apparently has a 
better home on their lot than the one they proposed and would offer it at the same price as 
their other model. The Ms. Lewis is going to look at the Clayton on-site model before the 
1/19/2021 BOCC meeting. Requested Action: Approve the application for CDBG mobile home 
replacement from Brenda Lewis and approve CDBG funding for Brenda Lewis to purchase a 
replacement single wide mobile home from the models proposed through the County’s CDBG 
Mobile Home Replacement Bid Package #5, or a comparable on-site home for the same price, plus 
CDBG mortgage recording costs.” 
 
On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Ward to approve the 
application for CDBG mobile home replacement from Brenda Lewis and approve CDBG 
funding for Brenda Lewis to purchase a replacement single wide mobile home from the 
models proposed through the County’s CDBG Mobile Home Replacement Bid Package #5, 
or a comparable on-site home for the same price, plus CDBG mortgage recording costs. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

 
B. Information Items 

1. CDBG Information Items: Ms. Belcher has three (3) information items on her report. The 
first and second items relate to DEO CDBG grant programs and the third is a change in the 
model of an approved mobile home purchase that does not affect the price. If you have any 
questions regarding these items do not hesitate to contact Mrs. Belcher. 

2. SHIP CRF Close-out Packet: Mrs. Lori Switzer-Mills forwarded (included in the agenda 
packet) the CRF final report submitted to Florida Housing. It shows how many people were 
served and how much was spent on each activity. There hasn’t been any word from the State 
as yet regarding additional CRF funding. Mrs. Switzer-Mills will inform the Board as soon as 
she is notified. 

3. Legislative Funding Requests: I have submitted the County’s Legislative funding request to 
both Senator Ausley and Representative Shoaf. As stated in a previous meeting, I requested 
$1.5 million for construction of a new EOC and $250,000 for the installation of a fire 
sprinkler/suppression system for the Fort Coombs Armory. I still haven’t received any 
request to include city projects. I will keep the Board updated on these funding requests. 

4. Building Department: The Building Department will be closed on Friday, January 22, 2021. 
This will allow staff the opportunity to process the backlog of permits that occurred due to 
recent COVID-19 quarantine restrictions in the office. I have notified the news media and 
posted a notice in the Annex Building and on the County’s website. 

 17

A.



FCBCC REGULAR MEETING 
January 19, 2021 
Page 8 of 8 
 
County Attorney – Michael Shuler – Report 

Commissioner Parrish brought up an ongoing issue where boats are being left docked at the Abercrombie Boat 
Landing making them unavailable to the public. Attorney Shuler suggested the Board create an ordinance to 
ensure the docks are clear.  

On a motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt authorizing Attorney Shuler 
to draft an ordinance regarding the time period boats can be docked at all County boat launches. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

Mr. Evan gave a quick update on the Alligator Point analysis study for the washout. Mr. Evan will have a couple 
of options for the Board to consider moving forward. The Board can expect a presentation at a later meeting. 

Attorney Shuler requested guidance from the Board on rescheduling the public hearings for the animal control 
ordinance, the dock ordinance, and the well and septic ordinance. Attorney Shuler suggested moving the 
hearings to the first meeting in March. The consensus of the Board was to postpone the public hearings for the 
animal control ordinance, the dock ordinance, and the well and septic ordinance until the March 2nd meeting. 

 

Madam Clerk Maxwell addressed the Board to notify them that her office had missed several invoices in the 
bill run on Friday, January 15th and a special bill run was necessary to pay the outstanding invoices. The 
invoices included payments to TDC, SHIP and MSBU.  

 

On motion by Commissioner Parrish, seconded by Commissioner Boldt approving a special bill run to 
pay the outstanding invoices. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Commissioners’ Comments 

Chairman Jones noted a proposed public shooting range, possibly in the works. Commissioner Boldt said he 
had a copy of the concept plan from Sam Hand at Florida A&M. Commissioner Parrish spoke in favor of the 
idea but noted the need for the planning of funding and maintenance. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
        ________________________________________ 
        Ricky Jones – Chairman 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 
____________________________________________ 
Michele Maxwell – Clerk of Courts 

 
18

A.



February 2, 2021
Franklin County Road Department

Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District
Detail from 1/14/2021 ‐ 1/27/2021

District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Begonia Street1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 1st Street1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 2nd Street1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 3rd Street1/20/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) David Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) South Franklin Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 1)1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Lucius Crum Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) 2nd Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) State Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Shuler Avenue1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Dunlap Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Gilbert Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Hickory Dip Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) David Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bay Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Hickory Dip Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Patton Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) South Franklin Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 1)1/21/2021

Flagged Ridgecrest Parkway1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 2nd Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Lucius Crum Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 1)1/21/2021

Culvert installation Ridgecrest Parkway1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Shuler Avenue1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) State Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Dunlap Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Gilbert Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bay Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bay Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) N Franklin Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Patton Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) 2nd Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) State Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Shuler Avenue1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Dunlap Road1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Gilbert Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Patton Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W Bay Shore Drive1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) David Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Hickory Dip Road1/21/2021

19

A.



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Gilbert Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Tallahassee Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Dunlap Road1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)1/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 12th Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Tallahassee Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Gilbert Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Dunlap Road1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)1/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 12th Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Dunlap Road1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Tallahassee Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Gilbert Street1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 1)1/25/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 12th Street1/25/2021

Flagged, Culvert installation, Dig out ditches N Bay Shore Drive1/26/2021

Sign Maintenance Old Ferry Dock Road1/26/2021

Flagged, Culvert installation, Dig out ditches N Bay Shore Drive1/26/2021

Cleaned out culverts Twin Lakes Road1/26/2021

Culvert installation N Bay Shore Drive1/26/2021

Sign Maintenance Old Ferry Dock Road1/26/2021

Shovel Dirt off of road Twin Lakes Road1/26/2021

Culvert installation, Dig out ditches N Bay Shore Drive1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Washington Street1/27/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Dunlap Road1/27/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

Washington Street1/27/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

Tallahassee Street1/27/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

Jefferson Street1/27/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

Dunlap Road1/27/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Tallahassee Street1/27/2021

Litter Pickup Jefferson Street1/27/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Washington Street1/27/2021

Sign Maintenance Franklin Blvd (State Road)1/27/2021

Sign Maintenance South Bay Shore Drive1/27/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter 1st Street1/20/2021 0.100000001 0

Litter 3rd Street1/20/2021 0.5 0

Litter 2nd Street1/20/2021 0.5 0

Litter Dunlap Road1/25/2021 1 0

Litter Avenue A (District 1)1/25/2021 1 0

Litter Gilbert Street1/25/2021 1 0

Litter Tallahassee Street1/25/2021 1 0

Litter Jefferson Street1/27/2021 4 0

Litter Washington Street1/27/2021 5 0

Litter Dunlap Road1/27/2021 2 0
20

A.



District 1

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Tallahassee Street1/27/2021 3 0

Litter TOTAL 19.10000000 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Ridgecrest Parkway1/21/2021 18 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 18 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Begonia Street1/20/2021 3 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 3 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Ridgecrest Parkway1/21/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 18 0

Milled Asphalt Lucius Crum Road1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Avenue A (District 1)1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt South Franklin Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt David Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt State Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Dunlap Road1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt 2nd Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Shuler Avenue1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt W Bay Shore Drive1/21/2021 3 0

Milled Asphalt Gilbert Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Patton Drive1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt W 2nd Street1/21/2021 3 0

Milled Asphalt Bay Street1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Hickory Dip Road1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Power Drive1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt W 12th Street1/25/2021 6 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 14.60000004 0

District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches West Drive1/14/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

West Drive1/14/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill), Road Repair Jeff Sanders Road1/14/2021

Box drag Ken Cope Ave1/19/2021

Litter Pickup Lake Morality Road1/19/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Kendrick Road1/19/2021

Swept CR671/19/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Kendrick Road1/19/2021

Box drag Jeff Sanders Road1/19/2021

Box drag McIntyre Road1/19/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Lake Morality Road1/19/2021

Swept CR671/19/2021

Litter Pickup Lake Morality Road1/19/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Spring Drive1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Hinton Street1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)1/20/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Putnal Street1/20/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Heffernan Drive1/20/2021

21

A.



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)1/20/2021

Trim Trees Elder Street1/20/2021

Culvert installation Florida Avenue (East)1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Putnal Street1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Heffernan Drive1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)1/20/2021

Culvert installation Florida Avenue (East)1/20/2021

Culvert installation Elder Street1/20/2021

Box drag I Avenue NE (City of Carrabelle)1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Heffernan Drive1/20/2021

Box drag 4th Street E (City of Carrabelle)1/20/2021

Box drag Duvall Road1/21/2021

Driveway repair Florida Street1/21/2021

Box drag Collins Avenue1/21/2021

Box drag Titi Street1/21/2021

Box drag Kansas Street1/21/2021

Box drag Idaho Street1/21/2021

Box drag Arizona Street1/21/2021

Driveway repair Elder Street1/21/2021

Box drag Duvall Road1/25/2021

Inmate School Franklin County Corrections Facility1/25/2021

Litter Pickup CR671/25/2021

Litter Pickup Rio Vista Drive1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive1/25/2021

Litter Pickup CR671/25/2021

Litter Pickup Rio Vista Drive1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Alligator Drive (Temporary Road)1/25/2021

Box drag Jeff Sanders Road1/26/2021

Inmate School Franklin County Corrections Facility1/26/2021

Box drag Duvall Road1/26/2021

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter West Drive1/14/2021 6 0

Litter Kendrick Road1/19/2021 2 0

Litter Lake Morality Road1/19/2021 3 0

Litter TOTAL 11 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Elder Street1/20/2021 18 0

Black Dirt Duvall Road1/21/2021 18 0

Black Dirt Duvall Road1/25/2021 18 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 54 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt Lake Morality Road1/19/2021 4 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Jeff Sanders Road1/14/2021 8 0
22

A.



District 2

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 8 0

Sand Duvall Road1/25/2021 18 0

Sand TOTAL 18 0

District 3

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Coach Wagner Blvd (14th Street) (City of 
Apalachicola)

1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Weems Memorial Hospital1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Weems Memorial Hospital1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Jacobie Lane (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Health Department (Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Health Department (Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Jacobie Lane (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Coach Wagner Blvd (14th Street) (City of 
Apalachicola)

1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Jacobie Lane (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Coach Wagner Blvd (14th Street) (City of 
Apalachicola)

1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Health Department (Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Weems Memorial Hospital1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

Litter Pickup Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Coach Wagner Blvd (14th Street) (City of 
Apalachicola)

1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Earl King Street (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Jacobie Lane (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Martin Luther King Jr. Ave. (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Avenue I  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Weems Memorial Hospital1/26/2021 1 0

Litter Health Department (Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter 9th Street  (City of Apalachicola)1/26/2021 1 0

Litter TOTAL 8 0

District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Box drag Buddy Ward Park1/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches, 
Litter Pickup

Brownsville Road1/14/2021 23

A.



District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches, 
Litter Pickup

Jackie Whitehurst Street1/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup, Cut 
grass in ditches

Brownsville Road1/14/2021

Box drag 13 Mile1/14/2021

Box drag Teat Road1/14/2021

Litter Pickup CR30A1/19/2021

Litter Pickup 10 Mile1/19/2021

Flagged Peachtree Road1/19/2021

Flagged Bluff Road1/19/2021

Culvert installation, Rake Shoulders of Road, Driveway repair Bluff Road1/19/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts CR30A1/19/2021

Dig out ditches, Culvert installation Bluff Road1/19/2021

Litter Pickup 8 Mile1/19/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill), Litter Pickup, Cut Trees down and removed, 
Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

CR30A1/19/2021

Litter Pickup 10 Mile1/19/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut Trees down and 
removed

CR30A1/19/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bay City Road1/19/2021

Litter Pickup 8 Mile1/19/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Apalachee Street1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Apalachee Street1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Bluff Road1/20/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Pine Log Road1/20/2021

Rake Shoulders of Road, Driveway repair Peachtree Road1/20/2021

Litter Pickup Linden Road1/27/2021

Litter Pickup Squire Road1/27/2021

Litter Pickup Peachtree Road1/27/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup, Cut 
grass in ditches

Pine Drive1/27/2021

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Bluff Road1/19/2021 36 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 36 0

Ditch Dirt Bluff Road1/26/2021 18 0

Ditch Dirt TOTAL 18 0

Litter Pine Drive1/27/2021 2 0

Litter TOTAL 2 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt 13 Mile1/14/2021 36 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 36 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt CR30A1/19/2021 5 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 5 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Buddy Ward Park1/14/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bluff Road1/19/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Peachtree Road1/19/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bluff Road1/26/2021 18 0
24

A.



District 4

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 72 0

Sand Bluff Road1/19/2021 18 0

Sand Bluff Road1/26/2021 18 0

Sand TOTAL 36 0

District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut 
grass in ditches

Carlton Millender Road1/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Sanborn Road1/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Carlton Millender Road1/14/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Tricia's Way1/20/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 4th Street1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 6th Street1/20/2021

Litter Pickup 8th Street1/20/2021

Box drag Mill Road1/20/2021

Box drag Avenue G NW (City of Carrabelle)1/20/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd1/21/2021

Box drag Maine Street1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 5)1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Cypress Lane1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Cypress Lane1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 5)1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Avenue A (District 5)1/21/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Bear Creek Rd1/21/2021

Litter Pickup Bear Creek Rd1/25/2021

Tree Removal Bloody Bluff Road1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Sand Beach Road1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Gardners Landing Road1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Bloody Bluff Road1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 5)1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Bear Creek Rd1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 5)1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Bear Creek Rd1/25/2021

Litter Pickup Avenue A (District 5)1/25/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Sand Beach Road1/27/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Bloody Bluff Road1/27/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Gardners Landing Road1/27/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)1/27/2021

Checked county roads for safety of traveling for public Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)1/27/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Carlton Millender Road1/14/2021 10 0

Litter 8th Street1/20/2021 0.5 0

25

A.



District 5

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter 4th Street1/20/2021 0.5 0

Litter 6th Street1/20/2021 0.5 0

Litter Avenue A (District 5)1/25/2021 1 0

Litter Bear Creek Rd1/25/2021 1 0

Litter TOTAL 13.5 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Cold Mix, Asphalt Bear Creek Rd1/20/2021 3 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 3 0

Milled Asphalt Cypress Lane1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Avenue A (District 5)1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt Bear Creek Rd1/21/2021 0.200000003 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 0.600000009 0

26

A.



 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Fonda D. Davis 

Solid Waste & Recycling, Animal Control, Parks & Recreation 
 

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 0 

============================================================================ 

 

 

 
Information Items: 
 
 
 
FOR BOARD INFORMATION:  

 
Right-of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled 

January 18, 2021-January 26, 2021 
 

RIGHT–OF–WAY DEBRIS PICKUP 

Apalachicola Eastpoint St George 

Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator Point 

90.51 

 TONS 

27.36 

 TONS 

3.68 

TONS 

1.36 

TONS 

-0- 

TONS 

-0- 

TONS 

 

RECYCLE MATERIAL HAULED 

 Apalachicola Eastpoint St. 
George 
Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator 
Point 

St. 
James 

Cardboard 3.98 

TONS 

3.49 

TONS 

2.56 

TONS 

1.42 

TONS 

-0-

TONS 

-0- 

TONS 

-0- 

TONS 

Plastic,Paper,Glass,  
Aluminum 

 
-0-  

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0-  

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0- 

TONS 

 
-0-

TONS 

REQUESTED ACTION: None  

 
 

27

A.



RESOLUTION 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners created a Local 

Mitigation Strategy Task Force comprised of county, municipal representatives, private citizens, 

local and regional agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, and agencies having 

authority to regulate development including businesses and other private and non-profit 

interests; and 

WHEREAS, the Board charged the Task Force with the responsibility to assess the 

hazards facing the county and to identify the initiatives designed to reduce the impacts of those 

hazards; and 

WHEREAS, the Task Force has completed the hazard assessment and has identified 

numerous initiatives designed to reduce the impact of future disasters; and 

WHEREAS, the Task Force has incorporated their finding and recommendations into the 

Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is committed to reducing the impact of hazard for all county 

residents; and 

WHEREAS, The Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy supports hazard mitigation 

throughout the entire county. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board adopts the Franklin County Local 

Mitigation Strategy to reflect the current need and citizens desire to identify and implement 

hazard mitigation initiatives that will reduce the county’s susceptibility to numerous hazards.  

And, at the appropriate time, the Board will develop and submit funding proposals to 

appropriate agencies to implement the hazard mitigation initiatives identified in the Franklin 

County Local Mitigation Strategy. 

 

DATE:  ___________________   BY:  __________________________ 

      Ricky Jones, Chairman 

ATTEST:  _________________________ 

Michele Maxwell, Clerk 

28

A.



 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Pamela Brownell, Director, Franklin County Emergency 
Management 
 

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 1 

============================================================================ 

 

 

Action Items: 

1. Request the Board adopt and sign the attached resolution for the County Approved Local 
Mitigation Strategy (LMS). 

 

Information Items: 

1. Franklin County has received a waiver for our match portion from Hurricane Hermine.  
2. EOC Staff continues to work Hurricane Sally from 09/12/20 and continues to work with FDEM 

and FEMA.  Franklin County has two projects for Hurricane Sally. 
3. Amanda Anthony and Jennifer Daniels passed the All Hazards Events class online with Texas 

A&M University on 01/28/21. Pamela Brownell is scheduled for the February Class. 
4. Amanda Anthony attended and passed her G-300 Class 01/19/21 - 01/21/21. 
5. EOC Staff along with our CERT Volunteers continue to distribute washable & reusable cloth 

mask throughout our community.  We have partnered with the City of Carrabelle and City of 
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce along with the St. George Island & Eastpoint Visitor 
Centers to assist with distribution to local businesses and residents.  We will continue this 
effort as long as supplies are available.  

6. EOC Staff are working diligently with DOH Staff regarding the COVID-19 virus.  This includes 
hosting meetings with representatives from DOH, Sheriff’s Dept. Weems, EMS, as needed.  
We also are assisting with Conference Calls, information distribution from DOH via Alert 
Franklin, Facebook and our EOC Website. 

7. EOC Staff continue to participate in conference calls with State DEM, Region 2, DOH, FEMA, 
etc. regarding COVID 19.  We also continue to update WebEOC with Local State of Emergency 
and SitReps. 

8. EOC Staff continue to work on FEMA reimbursement claims from Hurricane Michael. This 
includes working with FEMA staff regarding mitigation of damaged parks, roads, etc.  
Mitigation takes some time but EOC Staff continue to work diligently with FEMA Staff on the 
most beneficial repairs for Franklin County.  We are in contact with our PDMG regularly 
regarding these projects and will update the Board as soon as the State Review is completed. 

29

A.



EOC Staff has also began the FEMA reimbursement claim process for COVID-19 and Hurricane 
Sally. 

 

 
11.  Below is a copy of the DOH Dashboard regarding COVID-19 Cases in Franklin County 
as of 1/28/21 at 3:00 PM.   

 

30

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 1 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Purchase and install 
a countywide 
telephone 
emergency 
notification system. All Hazards Yes N/A

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Installation of 
hydrologic 
monitoring  gauges 
on the Ochlocknee, 
Crooked, New and 
Apalachicola Rivers. Floods Yes N/A

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Reduce flooding by 
replacing culverts 
and improving cross 
drains at Mill Road, 
McIntyre Road. Floods Yes HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Road 
Department

Build a new water 
well in Eastpoint. All Hazards Yes N/A Eastpoint

Eastpoint Water 
and Sewer 
District

Upgrade a left station 
in the City of 
Apalachicola. All Hazards Yes N/A

City of 
Apalachicola

Apalachicola 
Water and 
Sewer

Install Weather/ 
Water and Wind 
Gauges applied to all 
bridges and in 
various points 
around Franklin 
County. All Hazards Yes

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management/ 
DOT/ Franklin 
County Sheriff's 
Office

Institute Flag 
system/Display board 
for beaches. All Hazards Yes

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

DEP/FCEM/ 
Parks and rec 
State Park

Install an updated 
water pump system 
in selected areas of 
Eastpoint. All Hazards Yes CDBG

City of 
Eastpoint

Eastpoint Water 
and Sewer 
District

Hurricane proof 34 
Franklin County 
residential homes.

Hurricanes, 
tropical storms, 
severe 
thunderstorms, 
strong winds 
and tornadoes Yes HLMP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

In 2016 the Franklin County Sheriffs office discontinued the "Code Red" 
notification system. Franklin County Emergency Management has started using 
and maintaining Nixle. The State's notification system is now Everbridge. Nixle is 
a subsidiary of the Everbridge notification and alert Franklin has in place since 
2017.

The hydrologic monitoring gauges have been installed and the gauge 
installation at the Abercrombie Boat Ramp will occur once the ramp is rebuilt. 
The gauge has been purchased. 

As of November 2012, the status of this stormwater project was the culverts were 
replaced and the improvement cross drain project was completed. The 
construction continued through 2013 and was funded through the HMGP.

A new system and well on twin Lakes Road was completed in the 2012 - 2013 
timeframe. In addition two new vacuum stations was completed. . The project will 
be completed in September of 2016. The Well#1 will be retired and they will 
begin using Well #4.

A new water well was built in 2012. A secondary well was built and completed in 
2017 at a cost of approximately $3,500,000.

In 2017, a lift station was upgraded with an installation of a new generator. The 
approximate cost was $150,000.

Franklin County Parks and Rec has a flag system in place and is maintained by 
FCPR. There is 2 on St George Island and 1 in Carrabelle. They signage and 
information so that visitors are aware of the flag system. This  project was 
completed in 2018.

In February 2017, FCEM has partnered with Weather Stem to place a weather 
reporting station on St. George Island fishing pier. DOT is looking into installing 
wind gauges on all bridges in the near future. Wind gauges have been placed  
and this project  is completed.

There were 34 residential homes throughout Franklin County that were 
hurricane proofed through the hurricane loss mitigation program (HLMP).

31

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 2 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

Mitigation on 
repetitive loss (RL) 
properties Flooding Yes HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Emergency 
Operations Center 
(EOC) Wind Retrofit

All Hazards, 
Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
and High 
Winds Yes HMGP

City of 
Apalachicola

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Franklin County Jail 
Wind Retrofit.

All Hazards, 
Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
and High 
Winds Yes HMGP

Town of 
Eastpoint

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management

Perform a study on 
the effects of severe 
hurricanes, high 
winds, tropical 
storms, tornadoes 
and storm surge on 
businesses that 
perform essential 
services to the 
community.

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
High Winds, 
and Storm 
Surge No TBD

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 
Management TBD

1

Acquisition of 
Alligator Point Fire 
Department All Hazards No HMGP Alligator Point

Alligator Point 
St. Teresa 

Volunteer Fire 
Department / 

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $402,585 

Within a 
one year 
timeframe

2
6 Critical Facilities 
Generators All Hazards No HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $842,793 

Within a 
one year 
timeframe

3

Apalachicola, Market 
Street Vacuum 
Station, Utility 
Mitigation All Hazards No 

HMGP/ 
CDBG-
DR

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 
Water and 

Sewer 
Department/ 
Public Works 
Department/ 

Franklin County 
Solid Waste $2,333,000 

Within a 
one year 
timeframe

A important project and a critical facility for Franklin County. In addition, the jail is 
a back-up facility for the EOC. The Franklin County Jail was awarded a HMGP 
grant to complete the wind retrofit project. The project was completed in the 3rd 
quarter of 2015. The project description: Installed a new retrofit Metal 
Frame/Metal Roof Assembly over the Jail’s Administration Building, and a new 
Membrane Roof System over the Jail Facility House. In addition provided 
protection of all windows and doors of the entire structure. The total cost for the 
mitigation project was: $729,267. 

A important project and a critical facility for Franklin County. The EOC was 
awarded a HMGP grant to complete the wind retrofit project. The project was 
completed in the 1st quarter of 2015. The project description: Protected the 
entire envelope of the Franklin County Emergency Operations Center by 
designing and constructing a new hip roof and installing high velocity accordion 
shutters on the windows and installation of a roll down shutter on the access 
door of the EOC. The total cost for the mitigation project was: $94,943.                 

ARPC has communicated with FCEM and stated that this study has 
been completed

As stated in the Flood Mitigation Assistance Plan, 52 RL properties were 
mitigation in recent years via relocation or acquisition/demolition.

Construction of a new vacuum sewage station near 
the intersection of Market Street and Avenue G. The 
project will upgrade the existing wastewater 
infrastructure and mitigate future occurrences of 
sanitary sewer overflows.

The acquisition of the alligator point st. teresa fire 
department in currently in progress.

Installation of the six generators for the County's 
critical facilities will be within the next year.

32

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 3 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

4

Apalachicola, 2 
Critical Facilities 
Generators All Hazards No HMGP

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 
Administrator/ 

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $303,219 

Within a 
one year 
timeframe

5
Apalachicola, Water 
Street Drainage Flooding No HMGP

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 
Public Works 
Department / 
Administrator $1,626,570 

Within a 
two year 
timeframe

6

Update and enhance 
all communications 
equipment 
throughout the 
county All Hazards No 

Grants/ 
BOCC/ 
Various 
Programs
/ Local 
Funds

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Sheriff /Volunteer 
Fire Department/ 
Franklin County 

Emergency 
Management/ Road 
Department/ Solid 

Waste

Varies by 
project 

$5,000 to 
$500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

7

Acquire, relocate or 
elevate repetitive 
damaged structures 
throughout the 
county.

Flooding, 
Storm Surge No

HLMP/ 
HGMP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management

Varies as it 
depends 

on the type 
of structure x Funding

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

8

Build a new EOC in a 
central location 
Franklin County 
possible location off 
of Hwy 65 All Hazards No

Restore/ BP 
/Franklin 
County 
BOCC

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners $3,000,000 

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

9

Retrofit the Old 
Carrabelle City Hall 
as a  Volunteer 
Disaster Corp 
Training facility All Hazards NO

Private/ 
HMGP/ 
HLMP/ 
Non-
profit 
funding

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Non-Profit 

Organizations 

Varies by 
projects 

related to 
building x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

10

Construct a new 
Access Road at 
Franklin County 
School for 
Emergency Use All Hazards No

Grant/ 
HMGP/ 
Private 
funding

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $300,000

Within a 
five year 
timeframe 

11

Purchase and install 
an oxygen filling 
station that can be 
utilized after a 
disaster. 

All Hazards 
and Life 
Safety No

Grant/ 
DOH

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Department of 

Health $15,000 x

Within a 
five year 
time frame 

New Project for FLDOH - Hurricane 
Michael left a lot of residents with out 
access to oxygen. This project wants to 
be considered as a regional asset.

Franklin County School and Forestry are constructing 
an access road through the forest for Emergency 
Access only to the facility. The Florida Forest Service  
has given consent for permitting/ Easement which 
was completed.  At this time, this project is waiting for 
the School Board to construct Road. 

Various non-profits and county partners 
will be assisting with the work and 
funding for this project

All Agencies are evaluating/ discussing 
options for interoperable 
communications throughout the county. 
Firenet is operational and this is an 
ongoing project for the County.

Franklin County is looking at possible BP funds for 
building a new Multi-Agency Building.

Installation of the two generators for the City of 
Apalachicola's critical facilities will be within the next 
year.

There have been many storm flooding events that 
have caused considerable damage and especially to 
Water Street in the City of Apalachicola' s drainage. 
The goal is to have this mitigation project completed 
within the next two years.

33

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 4 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

12

Carrabelle Fire 
Hydrant System 
extended to West 
Side of County 
located between the 
light house and yents 
bayou. Wildfires No

Grants/ 
Public/ 
Private 

Carrabelle / 
Franklin 

County East 

Carrabelle Fire 
Department/ 

City of 
Carrabelle 

Administration $2,500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

13

Install Generators for 
all critical facilities, lift 
stations, government 
fueling depots 
located in Franklin 
County . All Hazards No

HMGP/ 
Grant / 
Private

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/          

City of 
Apalachicola/ 

City of 
Carrabelle

$100,000 
to 

$500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

14
Acquire land and 
Construct new landfill

All Hazards, 
Environmental No

BOCC 
funding 
/Grants/ 
HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 
Franklin County 

Landfill $1,500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

15

Protect County Road 
370 (Alligator Point 
Road) from 
hurricane storm 
surge.

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Storm Surge No

FEMA 
funding

Unincorporated 
Franklin County - 
Alligator Point

Franklin County 
Road 

Department $15,000,000 x Ongoing

16

Perform mitigation on 
efforts on residence 
homes against 
severe hurricanes, 
high winds , tropical 
storms, tornadoes 
and storm surge on 
low/moderate 
income owner 
occupied homes

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
Strong 
Winds, and 
Storm Surge No

HLMP 
Funds

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management
$200,000 
yearly x

17

Reduce Coastal 
erosion by planting 
vegetation and 
participating in 
beach 
renourishment 
programs to the 
enhance the 
formation of sand 
dunes and to protect 
roads from washouts.

Coastal 
Erosion No

FDEP 
Grant

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
ANEER

Varies by 
projects 
($10,000-
$150,000) x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

Franklin County Landfill is very limited. 
Franklin County Board of County 
Commissioners are looking for a new 
location for landfill expansion.

The project cost will vary depending on 
location and facility type.

Carrabelle Fire Department needs to 
install fire hydrants on the West side of 
Carrabelle to improve fire response to 
the county. This project is awaiting 
funding. 

This is ongoing project- 
FCEM and ANEER are 
working with several 
agencies to mitigate sand 
dunes and protect roads

Project is to move the 
road inland and acquire 
the RL properties. This 
mitigation project is 
deferred.

Franklin County is currently working on 
a Hurricane Loss Mitigation Program 
for Franklin County residents. This is 
considered an ongoing project for the 
County and currently are awaiting 
funding for the fiscal year. As noted 
above, 34 homes were completed with 
the hurricane loss mitigation program 
in previous years.

34

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 5 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

18

Florida Forest 
Service assess 
wildfire risk areas 
across the county 
establishing 
mitigation projects to 
measure the fuel 
loads and thus 
effectively reduce 
wildfire risk in these 
areas Wildfires No

Florida 
Forest 
Service 

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County and 
Alligator Point

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Florida Forest 

Service

Varies 
according 
to the risk 
area x Ongoing

19

Construct a new Fire 
Station in Alligator 
Point. All Hazards No

HMGP/ 
HLMP/ 
Franklin 
County 
BOCC All jurisdictions

Alligator Point 
St. Teresa 

Volunteer Fire 
Department / 

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $2,500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

20

Work with the Florida 
Forest Service to 
update the 
Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan 
(CWPP) to reduce 
wildfire risks within 
the Wildland-Urban 
Interface. And inform 
the public of the 
Firewise building 
and landscape 
design principles 
and the Ready, Set, 
Go program. Wildfires No

Florida 
Forest 
Service 

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Florida Forest 

Service

There is no 
cost for this 
mitigation 
project.

Within a  
one year 
timeframe 
and 
ongoing.

21

Protect and improve 
functioning of 
wetlands and 
waterways by 
eliminating and 
educating residents 
on living shorelines

Coastal and 
Riverine 
Erosion No

Local 
funds

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
ANEER

There is no 
cost for this 
mitigation 
project. x Ongoing

22

Update all County 
Mapping to include 
911 overlay, flood 
prone areas, 
damage assessment, 
and property 
appraiser properties. 

Flooding, 
Storm Surge No

HMGP/ 
FCEM/ 
Various 
Funding

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Planning and 

Building/ 
Franklin County 

Appraiser's 
Office $10,000 x Ongoing

FCEM / Flood Plain 
Manager are working on 
systems that  utilize the  
maps to identify all 
repetitive flood prone 
areas in ensure quicker 
emergency response time 
in the event of a disaster. 

The CWPP for Franklin County was completed in 
2013. The plan will be updated to reflect any current 
changes.  The Florida Forest Service will continue 
inform the public of the Firewise building and 
landscape design principles and the Ready, Set, Go 
program.

Location for new Fire Station has been 
identified and the old fire station can be 
purchased with HLMP as a repetitive 
loss structure.

ANEER/FFS work together 
year round to 
locate/eliminate and 
improve the living 
shoreline through 
education and 
environmental projects.

35

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 6 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

23

Mitigate storm water 
drainage projects 
throughout Franklin 
county. 

Flood, Storm 
Surge No Varies

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 
Franklin County 

Planning & 
Building 

Department/ Cities 
of Apalachicola 
and Carrabelle 
Administrators 

Varies by 
projects 
($10,000-
$750,000) x

Within five 
year 
timeframe

24

Develop and deliver 
Disaster Resistant 
programs for the 
business and 
residential 
communities on "how 
to prepare" for future 
disasters. All Hazards Yes

EMPA/ 
BOCC

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $15,000 Ongoing

25

Raise areas of  CR 
67 to prevent road 
flooding. Flooding No

HMGP/ 
Private / 
BOCC

 Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Road 

Department $3,000,000 x

Within five 
year 
timeframe

26

Wind Retrofit all 
Critical Facilities 
(including 
government and 
school facilities).

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
and High 
Winds No HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/
Franklin County 
School Board

Varies by 
location 
and type of 
structure; 
could be 
over 
$750,000 x Funding

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

27

Relocation of the 
Apalachicola City 
Hall. Flooding No

HMGP/  
Private 
funding

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 

City 
Administrator $800,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

28

Upgrade or replace 
City and County 
Wastewater 
treatment facilities Flooding No

HMGP/ 
Private 
Funding / 
City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 

City 
Administrator/ 

Franklin County 
Solid Waste 
Department $500,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

Apalachicola City Utilities needs 
improvements and upgrades on the 
current wastewater treatment center. 

Franklin County Emergency Management delivers 
ongoing programs and distributes materials on how 
to prepare for future disasters to the residential and 
business community.  This is an ongoing project and 
FCEM will continue to educate all Franklin County 
Residents in being disaster ready.                                

Apalachicola City Hall was damaged 
during Hurricane Michael and is 
located in a flood prone area. City is 
seeking to relocate out of the flood 
prone area.

36

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 7 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

29

Implement 
Community Rating 
System flood 
resilience activities. Flooding No 

Local 
funds

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 

Cities of 
Carrabelle and 
Apalachicola 

City 
Administrators/ 
Franklin County 

Emergency 
Management

Depending 
on the 
activity cost 
could 
range up to 
$30,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe.

30

Drainage Basin 
Analysis-Carrabelle/ 
Apalachicola and 
Unincorporated 
Franklin County Flooding No

Potential 
funding 
would be 
NWFWMD

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 

City of 
Carrabelle 

Administrator/ 
Franklin County 

Building 
Department $25,000 x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

31

Evaluate and 
mitigate all flood 
prone areas due to 
sand dune shift and 
other environmental 
factors. Flooding No

Potential 
funding 
would be 
FDEP 
grant

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 

City of 
Carrabelle 

Administrator/ 
City of 

Apalachicola 
Building 

Department

Depending 
on the area 
size the 
mitigating 
costs could 
be over 
$400,000+ x

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

32

Evaluate and 
mitigate all flooding 
prone areas 
throughout the 
County. Flooding No

Potential 
funding 
would be 
local 
funds

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners/ 

City of 
Carrabelle 

Administrator/ 
City of 

Apalachicola 
Building 

Depending 
on the area 

size the 
mitigation 

costs could 
range from 
$15,000 to 

over 
$1,000,000

Within a 
five year 
timeframe.

33

Work with the Florida 
Forest Service in 
offering forest 
protection education 
in the county's 
schools. Wildfires No

Florida 
Forest 
Service 

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Florida Forest 
Service $200,000 Ongoing

This project is deferred 
due to funding.

Florida Forest Service (FFS) has secured a 
scholarship for $20,000 a year for a student who 
graduated from the Franklin County School to further 
education in Forestry. Agriculture class and FFS 
continually provides Forest Protection education to all 
Franklin County Students. During the Summer 
program 2 students spent 3 days a week working with 
the Forest Service. One Franklin County School 
student was given an $80,000 Scholarship.

There will be future discussion on how 
to accomplish this activities.

The scope of work will need to be 
reviewed and determined. 

The scope of work for the analysis and 
study will need to be determined. 

37

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 8 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

34

Conduct Community 
Emergency 
Response Team 
(CERT) training for 
the Franklin County 
residents. All Hazards Yes

Grants 
and Fund 
Raising

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $15,000 Ongoing

35

Improve efforts in 
debris removal of 
dead, dying or 
diseased trees and 
branches next to 
road and highways. All Hazards No

FDOT 
Funding/
Duke 
Energy/ 
BOCC

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/ 
Duke Energy/ 

State of Fl 
Contractor/ 

Road 
Department

Varies by 
project 
($5,000 to 
$500,000) x Ongoing

36

Work with the Florida 
Forest Service on 
evaluating the 
defensible space on 
all the critical facilities 
throughout the 
county. Wildfires No

Florida 
Forest 
Service 

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management/  
Florida Forest 

Service

There is no 
cost for this 
mitigation 
project. x Ongoing

37

Replace a control 
panel at a lift station 
in the City of 
Apalachicola. All Hazards No

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 

Water and 
Sewer 

Department $2,500 x

Within a 
two year 
timeframe.

38

Build a new 
wastewater treatment 
plant in Eastpoint. All Hazards No City Funding Eastpoint

Eastpoint Water 
and Sewer 

District $3,500,000

Within a 
two year 
timeframe

39

Educate the county 
residents on water 
saving techniques. Drought No HMGP

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management

Within a 
two year 
timeframe

A new wastewater treatment plant in 
Eastpoint is currently being build. The 
estimated timeframe for completion is 
within two years.

The City of Apalachicola is upgrading a 
lift station with an installation of a new 
control panel. The project is expected to 
be completed within two years.

The Emergency Management office will develop materials on 
water saving techniques that will benefit the county and citizens 
during a drought period. The estimated cost would to produce 
materials would be $500.

Franklin County has a CERT group and continues to 
provide CERT training. This is an on-going program 
for the county.

The Franklin County EM 
Director sent specifics to 
the local Florida Forest 
Service. The Florida 
Forest Service will provide 
the information on the 
defensible space on 
critical facilities. This is 
considered an ongoing 
mitigation project.

Duke Energy maintains 
the power lines.  State 
DOT Contractor maintains 
the Franklin County State  
highways. 

38

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 9 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

40

Organize outreach to 
vulnerable 
populations 
including 
establishing and 
promoting accessible 
heating or cooling 
centers in the 
community.

Extreme 
Temperatures 
(heat waves 
and freezes) No

There is 
no cost 
for this 
mitigation 
project.

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management

Within a 
two year 
timeframe

41

Install sirens at 
various points 
throughout the 
county.

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 

Tornadoes, 
Waterspouts, 
Strong Winds No BOCC

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $5,000

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

42

Enforce local laws, 
which allow local 
governments to 
enact burn bans 
during periods of 
drought.

Wildfire, 
Drought Yes

There is 
no 
funding 
required.

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Board of County 
Commissioners

There is no 
cost for this 
mitigation 
project. Ongoing

43

Install tornado 
shelters throughout 
the county.

Tornadoes 
and Strong 

Winds No BOCC

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 

County

Franklin County 
Emergency 

Management $500,000 x

This project 
is deferred 
due to 
funding.

Within a 
five year 
timeframe

Retrofit the 
Carrabelle City Hall.

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
and High 
Winds No HMGP

City of 
Carrabelle

City of 
Carrabelle 

Sirens are located a DW Wilson Park, Carrabelle RV 
Park and the Franklin County Schools. A maintenance 
plan will need to be developed and put in place.

This project was deleted at the August 2016 LMS 
meeting due to lack of funding for the possible 
relocation of Carrabelle City Hall. In addition in 2018 
a new City Hall Complex was built.

The mitigation projects in this color were deleted by the LMS Working Group.

The county will continue to enforce the local laws to 
burn bans during periods of drought.

The Emergency Management Department will devise an outreach 
program to reach the vulnerable populations throughout the 
County and promote safety and heating and cooling centers in the 
community. There would be no cost for this mitigation project.

39

A.



Franklin County Local Mitigation Strategy Project List 
(November 2020)

Page 10 of 10

Priority Description of 
Mitigation Project 

Goal for 
Hazards 
Mitigated

Mitigation 
Goals 

Achieved

Funding 
Source

Jurisdiction 
(Location)

Agency 
Responsible 

for 
Implementation

Estimated 
Costs Timeframe 

to 
Complete

New Ongoing Deferred If Deferred  
Why?

Status

The projects located in this color were completed mitigation projects (2015 - 2019). Selected projects were completed in previous years.

Inspect septic tanks 
for low-income 
homeowners and 
abate failing systems. Floods No N/A

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County. N/A

Purchase and install 
smoke alarms in low 
income homes. Wildfires No N/A

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County. N/ASet aside a portion of 

"in lieu of taxes," 
funding received by 
the Franklin County 
School District from 
the Florida Division 
of Forestry, for a 
college forestry 
scholarship for 
students from 
Franklin County. Wildfires No N/A

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County. N/A

Require flood hazard 
disclosure in a deed 
of sale or transfer of 
improved or 
unimproved of real 
property. Floods No TBD

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Building and 
Planning

Reduce flooding in 
the Rio Vista area by 
installing a drainage 
system on the north 
side of the road into 
Cow Creek and the 
Ochlocknee River. Floods No TBD

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County.

Franklin County 
Road 
Department/ 
Florida Forestry 
Service

Hwy 98 needs 
resurfacing from 
Carrabelle to 
Apalachicola. All Hazards No

FEMA/Sta
te 
Funded

All jurisdictions 
in Franklin 
County. FDOT

Reduce or prevent 
stormwater flooding 
in Apalachicola in the 
following areas: 24th 
and 25th Avenues, 
8th through 10th 
Streets between J 
and G, and on US 
Highway 98 and 12th 
and 16th Streets. 

Floods, 
Storm Surge No TBD

City of 
Apalachicola

City of 
Apalachicola 
Road Dept 

Retrofit the FSU 
Marine Lab 
buildings.

Hurricanes, 
Tropical 
Storms, 
Tornadoes, 
and High 
Winds No HMGP

Franklin 
County  and St. 
Teresa

FSU Marine 
Lab

This project was deleted due to lack of funding.

This project was deleted at the November 2013 LMS 
meeting. American Red Cross is completing this 
project.

This project was deleted at the November 2013 LMS 
meeting due to lack of funding.

This project was deleted at the November 2014  LMS 
Meeting due to lack of funding.

This project was deleted at the November 2013 LMS 
meeting due to lack of funding.

Hwy 98 is a State Road -  FDOT is evaluating the road 
and will be repaired from the damage from Hurricane 
Michael, therefore is was deleted.

FSU Marine Lab has other buildings that could 
benefit from a Wind Retrofit. Deleting this mitigation  
project until representative confirms that other 
buildings need retrofit.

This drainage improvement project is on the DOT 5-
year capital project list. The DOT and Preble-Rish 
have agreed on a resurfacing project on US 98 
through Apalachicola and estimated to be complete 
in 2014. The installation of buffer boxes are currently 
in progress.   Some work has been done on 10th 
Street.  The EM Director will get with the City and DOT 
for a status on the project.  An update on the costs will 
be available at the next LMS meeting - Moved to 
deferred to adjust the new storm water projects

40

A.



Airport Manager Report for 02/02/2021 BOCC Meeting 

 

The airport is fully operational with no issues to report at this time. I wanted to take a quick 

moment and say a big thank you for the equipment purchase that was approved last meeting. We 

should be receiving the much needed new Zero-Turn mower and new Gator XUV at any time 

now. This new equipment will be kept in the hangar adjacent to Centric Aviation. 

 

There is a FDOT grant that will be available in August, 2021 to purchase a new larger tractor and 

implements for the major mowing at the airport. I am attempting to secure funding for an 

equipment shed/enclosure so old and new equipment can be kept out of the elements etc…  

  

Please find below an update on the current projects.  There are fewer than normal projects 

ongoing right now since we completed and closed several grants last year and the FDOT 

removed the FY2021 funding due to COVID impacts to the state budgets. 

  

1.   Runway 6-24 Electrical Improvements:  The construction contact has been executed 

and the contractor is scheduled to start work soon.  This work includes the complete 

replacement of the Runway 6-24 edge lighting system. 

  

2.   Fuel Farm Replacement:  The County received TRIUMPH grant funds to replace the 

aged fuel farm and design with AVCON will begin as soon as the design task order is 

approved by TRIUMPH.  This project will evaluate three potential fuel farm locations 

to assist the County in selecting the ultimate location, two new 12,000-gallon tanks, 

entirely new fuel system, and self-serve card reader. 

  

3. Apron Rehabilitation:  The County has an FDOT grant to rehabilitate the apron 

pavement in front of the FBO and along the east and west aprons.  As part of this 

project, the FAA and FDOT are requesting AVCON prepare an apron utilization study 

which will evaluate the current and future uses of the apron to confirm that all of the 

apron pavement is justified for federal and state funding. 

 

I am proud of our airport and the economic impact that it provides to Franklin County. We have 

a respected name in the aviation community and that speaks volumes to the hard work of all 

involved to make the airport the best it can be. 

 

Thank you for your support! 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jason K. Puckett 

Airport Manager 

41

A.



January 2021 Update

Alligator Point 
Coastal Resiliency 
Alternatives 
Analysis

42

A.



Agenda

1. Introductions
2. Project Background 
3. Issues/Assets
4. Potential Management Strategies 
5. Next Steps/Action Items

43

A.



Project Background

• Franklin County was awarded grants from the Florida Resilient 
Coastlines Program and Northern Gulf of Mexico Sentinel Site 
Cooperative 
– Stakeholder Engagement
– Coastal Community Vulnerability Assessment

• Infrastructure
• Economy
• Social/cultural

– Propose Updated Language for Comprehensive Plan
– Discuss and Evaluate Alternatives

44

A.



Project Background

45

A.



Area of Study

Alligator Point Coastal Resiliency Alternatives Analysis – Public Comment Form
(http://enegis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=0a35302de99042cebeb1afc94d146b15)46

A.

http://enegis.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=0a35302de99042cebeb1afc94d146b15


Coastal Resiliency Issues

• Flooding
• Erosion (chronic and acute)

– Roadway replacement/maintenance costs
– Post-storm access

• Residents/visitors
• Emergency services

• What are some other coastal resiliency issues that you can think of? 
Please use the “Chat” function to provide info/feedback

47

A.



Storm Damage

48

A.



Historic Shoreline Locations
Source: https://coastalmap.marine.usgs.gov/js_map/national/ShoreLC/

49

A.

https://coastalmap.marine.usgs.gov/js_map/national/ShoreLC/


Potential Storm Surge

• The elevations shown here are the 
storm surge for each storm at the 
Apalachicola tide gauge, not at 
Alligator Point.

• These illustrate the potential
storm surge for similar storms in 
the future.

50

A.



Predicted Storm Surge Source: https://sls.geoplan.ufl.edu/beta/viewer/

51

A.

https://sls.geoplan.ufl.edu/beta/viewer/


Measured Sea Level Rise

Sea Level Rise Trend Data from NOAA (Source: https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/sltrends/sltrends_station.shtml?id=8728690)
52

A.

https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/sltrends/sltrends_station.shtml?id=8728690


Community Assets

• People
• Roads
• Houses
• Fire station
• Businesses
• Public access areas
• Healthy ecosystem (e.g., seagrass beds, marshes, etc.)
• Other infrastructure (water system, etc.)

53

A.



54

A.



Potential Management Strategies

• “Hold the Line”: Armor roadway (build seawall)
• “Feed the System”: Nourish beach (add sand)
• “Avoid the Danger Zone”: Relocate and/or elevate roadway
• “Add Buffering Capacity”: Build significant dune system
• “Reduce Wave Energy”: Offshore breakwaters to reduce wave energy 

and capture sediments 
• “Soft Repairs”: Low cost and temporary repairs road with gravel, 

providing limited access to vehicles (4-wheel drive)
• Others?

55

A.



Hold the Line: 
Armor Roadway in Existing Right-of-Way

• Use existing ROW (what’s left of it)
• Includes armoring (seawall/revetment)
• Already designed
• Awaiting funding from FEMA

56

A.



Hold the Line: Riprap Breakwater, Revetment and Groin Complex

Google Earth

Revetment

Groin
Breakwater

Dauphin Island, AL
• $6.8 million re-nourishment and re-

armoring project began 2016
• Road armored with riprap (rock) 

revetment
• Groins and breakwaters 

amended/constructed to help trap 
sediments

• 300,000 cubic yards of sand for beach 
re-nourishment

57

A.



Feed the System: Nourish Beach

• Involves adding sand to highly 
eroded section of beach

• Already designed and permitted
• Far down the priority list for state 

funding (it won’t likely be funded 
for at least a few years)

58

A.



Avoid the Danger Zone: Relocate Roadway

• Franklin County has been 
working to acquire the land to 
relocate the roadway

• To date most of the land has 
been acquired to relocate the 
roadway to a higher, safer 
location

• This approach will not limit any 
further erosion nor offer any 
additional protection to 
adjacent properties

59

A.



Add Buffering Capacity: Build Dune System Complex

Road

Topsail HillSt JosephSt George

• Does not alter erosion rate and 
continued maintenance required

• Lost sediments will benefit 
adjacent areas

• Alone not suitable for highly 
erosive areas but can be used in 
combination with other methods

60

A.



Reduce Wave Energy: Offshore Breakwaters

Google Earth
Breakwater

• Offshore breakwaters 
reduce wave action 
thereby reduce erosion

• Sand accumulates behind 
the breakwater to provide 
further protection

• Often used in combination 
with beach restoration in 
highly erosive areas 

• May be difficult or 
impossible to permit and 
likely will require 
nourishment 61

A.



Soft Repairs: Plan for 4x4 Only Access?

Carova Beach, NC
• ~584 Vacation 

Rentals
• Accessible by 4x4 

vehicles only 62

A.



Proposed Recommendations

1. Pursue strategies to relocate road from most vulnerable areas.
2. Continue seeking state (and other) funding to nourish the beach. Conduct an economic 

study to determine what would be the “fair share” for property owners to pay versus 
the rest of the county.

3. Seek grant funds to develop the old KOA campground into a first-class park, which 
would provide enough restroom and parking facilities to alleviate the problems at the 
public access points elsewhere on the point. 

4. As part of the beach nourishment (or as a follow-up phase), a robust dune system 
should be built and vegetated to maximize the buffering capacity and add resiliency to 
the shoreline.

5. Lastly, the concept of a breakwater could be considered to help increase the longevity 
of the beach nourishment project and provide wave attenuation during storm events. 
However, a breakwater should not be constructed without nourishment. Otherwise, it 
will likely create erosional hotspots elsewhere on the point.

63

A.



1a. Relocate road to the north side of existing fire station building

Eliminate the 
vulnerable road 
section on the 
seaward side of the 
fire station. This would 
significantly reduce 
the vulnerability of the 
road at the existing 
intersection of Harry 
Morrison Rd and 
Alligator Dr.

64

A.



1b. Potential Relocation of Road from George Vausell Rd. to Tom Roberts Rd

Figure out an amicable way to relocate the eastern 
portion of the washed-out road to the north side of the 
3 houses that are there now. This strategy would 
significantly reduce the vulnerability of this road section, 
by moving it’s away from the water’s edge and to higher 
ground. 

65

A.



Questions?

Rick Harter
rick.harter@wsp.com 

(850) 591-6957

Josh Adams
jadams@thearpc.com

(850) 488-6211 ext. 104

66

A.

mailto:jadams@thearpc.com


67

A.



68

A.



69

A.



70

A.



71

A.



72

A.



73

A.



74

A.



75

A.



76

A.



77

A.



78

A.



79

A.



80

A.



81

A.



82

A.



83

A.



84

A.



85

A.



86

A.



87

A.



88

A.



89

A.



90

A.



91

A.



92

A.



93

A.



94

A.



95

A.



96

A.



97

A.



98

A.



99

A.



100

A.



101

A.



102

A.



103

A.



104

A.



105

B.



1 
 

Small County Coalition 
Vaccine Program Observations and Suggestions 

1/25/2021 
 

Executive Summary  

Small County Coalition Leadership Offers Observations on Vaccination Program  

The Officers and Executive Committee of the Small County Coalition met by ZOOM call on Friday – 

1/22/21.  The purpose of the call was to share experiences with the Vaccine Roll-out in their counties and 

to see if there were any common concerns that could not be handled at the local level.  We understand the 

significant task at hand and clearly understand that the major issue is on the supply side.  However, there 

are some areas of implementation that could be addressed that would provide better clarity and 

understanding by the public.  Here is an Executive Overview of the major observations and thoughts 

reflected from the discussion.   

1. There is a major supply chain shortage to respond to the need of the target population.  

2. The public is anxious for clear information on when they can get appointments.   

3. Counties are experiencing intercounty “shot hunting” from out-of-county residents which is 

upsetting local residents who perceive that the vaccines being allotted to the local county are 

being used by residents of another county.    

4. It is not clear how vaccine allocations are determined for each of the 67 counties and the venues 

in each county.     

5. The impact of inter-county “shot hunting” has affected the allotments available to local county 

residents in some counties.   

6. Citizens are anxious to secure an appointment to get shots but are having difficulty getting 

through current systems to secure information and appointments.    

7. It appears that some individuals are securing multiple appointments at various venues – there 

should be a system to cancel multiple appointments when a citizen receives the shot.    
Recommendations –  

• Clarify the algorithm used to determine allotments to counties and make it known to the local 

communities so they can plan effectively.  

• Create accommodations or directions that respond to intercounty impacts. Counties with a high 

amount of intercounty “shot hunters” should be subsidized with an increased allocation to meet 

the needs of the host county. 

• Create a way for duplicate appointments to be freed up when a resident receives a 

vaccine.  Requests for appointments should be forwarded to the county of residence to provide.  

• Strengthen Information to the public about availability and operational protocols.     

 
  

106

A.



2 
 

Small County Coalition 
Vaccine Program Observations and Suggestions 

 

• Cooperation - The administration of the COVID Vaccine program is managed by the State of 

Florida.   Working with the Federal Government, the State of Florida has assigned the vaccine rollout 

to the Florida Department of Health and the State Division of Emergency Management.  The primary 

authority at the local level is the County Health Department in coordination with the local Emergency 

Management network.    County Commissions are a critical element in providing support services but 

decisions on implementation are within the authority of the Local Health Department Director.   Based 

on input from the Coalition’s leadership – collaboration has occurred in most instances and County 

Commissions have been actively engaged in allocating resources to assist in the administration of the 

vaccine program at the local level.  Notwithstanding the cooperation, the public is anxious for clear 

information on when they can get appointments and counties are experiencing “shot hunting” from 

out-of-county residents.   “Shot Hunting” is upsetting local residents who perceive that the vaccines 

being allotted to the local county are being used by residents of another county.   The commissioners 

expressed concern with this issue and questioned whether the State could either increase local county’s 

allotment by the number of shots used by out of county residents or whether counties could forward 

vaccine requests from out-of-county residents to the health department in the citizens county of 

residence.    Without this kind of control – local residents feel their counties allotment is being 

“raided”.   

 

• Supply and Allocation – The supply of the Vaccine in the function of the Federal Government, 

however, once Florida’s Supply is identified it is not clear to local officials how allotments are 

determined for each of the 67 counties and the venues in each county.    The Vaccine program is 

moving into Week Five and counties have implemented a variety of methods in making shots available 

to the public.   It is unclear as to the schedule for availability of vaccines over the next few weeks.   In 

addition, the impact of inter-county “shot hunting” has caused anxiety amongst the public.  In effect, 

the allotment received by local communities is being used for people from out-of-county that have 

been successful in getting an appointment or a shot in a county that is not their county of 

residence.   This is a problem needs to be taken into account in the allotment formula and the system to 

secure appointments.   In addition, as the program moves to utilize Private Sector vaccination sites – 

how will Florida assure equity to the rural counties without a Publix or other potential private vendors?    

 

• Access to Shots - Citizens are anxious to secure an appointment to get shots.   Phone lines have been 

tied up and, directions to the public have not had a consistent message.   Although the total vaccination 

effort is getting shots in arms – a significant portion of the public is actively shopping where to get 

their shots.   This practice of “shot hunting” where a person crosses county lines is effectively 

depleting the host county’s allotment.   Additionally, the practice complicates the 2nd shot 

allotments.   When a person gets a shot in a neighboring county – it is intended that the person 

receiving the initial shot will receive the 2nd dose at the same location.   Another complicating factor is 

the individuals that are “shot hunting” are securing multiple appointments leaving shot times tied up 

where the host county cannot move to another individual.   Consideration should be given to enabling a 

system to cancel multiple appointments when a citizen receives the shot.   This would free up 

appointments that were duplicates.       

107

A.



3 
 

 

Here are some of the specific questions and suggestions regarding the Vaccine Program:   

 
Supply –  

• What algorithm is used to establish the allotments for each county?  

• Is there any circumstance that counties can increase their allotment?  

• Are there any circumstances that would reduce a counties allotment?  

• Will inter-county activity be considered in future allotments?  

• As the program moves to utilize Private Sector vaccination sites – will rural counties without a Publix or 

other potential private vendors be further challenged to secure vaccines for their residents?    

 

Access to Shots –  

• Can a county restrict their appointments to county residents?  

• Can a county prioritize giving shots to local residents before scheduling out-of-county requests?  

• Can a county with a high % of out-of-county utilization have their allotments increased to offset the 

intercounty impacts?  

• Is there a way to identify individuals that are signing up in multiple locations or to delete individuals from 

waiting lists that have successfully received a vaccine from another source? 

 

Appointments for Shots –  

• Is there a way that the system can refer an out-of-county caller to their county of residence?  

• Will the new SHARE CARES - Can a county simply take the information from a caller and send the 

information to the resident county health department to get a call back from the home county?  

• Can a county hold giving appointments to people that are from another county in an effort to have their 

allotment used for citizens in the host county.    

 

Projection and Adjusting Allotments to meet the needs of the local community –  

• Can the State allotment decision take into consideration the % of individuals from neighboring counties are 

utilizing shots that were allotted to the host county?  

• Can a County request additional supply to address the identified need?   

 

Administration of 2nd Doses –  

• What guidance is there about allocating some of the allotments for 2nd shots?    

 

Communications –  

• There is a need for consistent communications to provide the public with information about availability and 

methods for signing up - There is a need for clear information –  # of vaccines allotted to the county/ Point 

of contacts/How to register 

 

Recommendations –  

1. Base the allocation decision on an understandable Algorithm - population; % of population in the target 

categories; the number of people that have traveled inter-county to secure a shot away from their home 

county.   Whatever the formula – make it clear!   

2. Establish a system to manage appointments that processes requests from citizens to their own counties and 

provides an ability to negate multiple-appointments or cancel multiple appointment when the citizen 

receives a vaccine.  

3. Implement a state communication plan that is clear for the public to understand – the decisions being made 

and the schedule for the availability of vaccines.  

108

A.



 

  RICKY D. JONES      BERT B. BOLDT II       NOAH LOCKLEY, JR.       JOSEPH PARRISH            JESSICA WARD  
    DISTRICT ONE               DISTRICT TWO                  DISTRICT THREE                 DISTRICT FOUR                DISTRICT FIVE 

 

 

 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 

 
 
The Honorable Jared Moskowitz 
Director, Division of Emergency Management 
State of Florida 
Tallahassee, Florida 
  
  
Dear Director Moskowitz,  
  
The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners recognizes the significant challenge that the COVID-19 

pandemic has been placed on the public.  We understand that implementing a statewide program is a massive task 

and it takes the cooperation at all levels of government to address effectively confront the pandemic.        
  
Over the past few months, our community has been increasingly anxious in terms of finding out how, when, where 

they can receive vaccines.   Our Franklin County Health Department and our Emergency Management staff are 

working together to make sure the public is receiving the right information.  We want to make sure that Franklin 

County is getting an equitable amount of the vaccines when they come available to the State of Florida.     
  
As you are aware, Franklin County is a small and fiscally constrained county.    We want to make sure that our 

county is doing everything we can to ensure the maximum allotment possible.   We don’t have a Walmart or a 

Publix and want to make sure that this does not hinder or impact our supply.   
  
We appreciate the fact that the current supply of the vaccination is inadequate and that your office is struggling to 

access sufficient vaccines to meet the needs of the public. Our county commissioners stand ready to assist the 

continuing effort to ultimately achieve full vaccination of the residents in Franklin County.   
  
As a small county, we also support the efforts of the Small County Coalition and the Florida Association of Counties 

to help us communicate with the state agencies and the public.      
  
Please accept our comments as a genuine effort to assure the public in Franklin County that our county and the other 

fiscally constrained counties are not being left behind and that the State of Florida Vaccination Program will provide 

each of our counties with an equitable allotment of vaccines for use in our county.   
  
Sincerely, 

 

 

Ricky Jones 

Chairman 
 
 

 

REPLY TO:  □ 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

33 MARKET STREET, SUITE 203 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-8861, EXT. 100 

(850) 653-4795 FAX 

REPLY TO:  X 
PLANNING & BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

34 FORBES STREET, SUITE 1 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-9783 

(850) 653-9799 FAX 

 

109

A.



R
a

n
g

e
R

a
n

g
e

-
-

DW

-
-

-

FLOOR PLAN LEGEND

EXISTING TO REMAIN

NEW GYP / METAL STUD WALL PARTITION

NEW CMU WALL PARTITION

Name

101

101
-

A

ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

DOOR NUMBER

WINDOW  TYPE (EXTERIOR)

1 HOUR  RATED WALL ASSEMBLY

2 HOUR  RATED WALL ASSEMBLY

P-1 WALL PARTITION  TYPE

1i WINDOW  TYPE (INTERIOR)A

B

90 MIN

FIRE RATING

SPOT ELEVATION

eoc
coordinator

eoc
director

eoc
office manager

entrance re-entry &
photo id office

restroom

ops chief &
admin assistant

conference
room

table / chair
storage

debris removal &
damage assessment

restroom w/
shower

restroom w/
shower

work area

classroom, meeting room, planning, dining & workstations for outside agencies

kitchen

pantry

vending

Copyright Barnett Fronczak Barlowe & Shuler, Architects.  All rights Reserved 2074 Centre Pointe Blvd, Suite #200, Tallahassee, FL      32308

Phone 850 224-6301 Fax 850 561-6978

Tallahassee Florida

Revisions

Date

Project Code

Drawn By:

Checked By:

BARLOWE

A

FRONCZAK
BARNETT

SHULER&
R C H I T E C T S

NOTES

A1.1

FRANKLIN COUNTY
E.O.C.

FLOOR PLAN

CONCEPT

18 January 2021

- jh2

DS

1/4" = 1'-0"A1.1

LEVEL 1 - 4,884 sq. ft.1
110

A.



FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY EMS GRANT 

 

WHEREAS, The Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida having met in 

regular session this 2nd day of February 2021 and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida is cognizant of 

the fact that the Emergency Medical System (EMS) is beneficial to the citizens, residents, and 

visitors of Franklin County, Florida and the surrounding counties, and 

 

WHEREAS, The Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida is aware of and 

agrees to the use the funds to improve or expand pre-hospital EMS and will not be used to 

supplant current levels of county expenditures. 

 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin 

County, Florida the said Board request the State of Florida through its agent to award the Board 

of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida the EMS County Grant in the amount of 

$813.00.  

 

The Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners is designated as the fiscal agent and is 

authorized to accept the grant and execute all appropriate documents and contracts related to the 

administration of the grant.   

 

The State of Florida County EMS grant application is made a part of this resolution by reference. 

 

Any and all laws shall be in full force and effective immediately upon passage and approval in 

the manner provided by this resolution. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 2nd DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

                                                                                            Ricky D. Jones, Chairman   

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

BY: _______________________________ 

              Michele Maxwell, Clerk of Court 

111

A.



 

RESOLUTION 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 145.022, Florida Statutes provides that the Board of County 

Commissioners, with the concurrence of the Franklin County Tax Collector as provided for in 

said section, shall by resolution guarantee and appropriate a salary to the Franklin County Tax 

Collector in and amount not to exceed that specified in said chapter, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Franklin County Tax Collector has requested and concurred with the 

Franklin County Board of County Commissioners that said Tax Collector be placed on a salary 

as provided in said Section, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the said Tax Collector will pay all fees collected by said office to the 

Franklin County Board of County Commissioners as provided in said as provided in said 

Section. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1. That the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Florida, pays the Franklin 

County Tax Collector a guaranteed salary as provided for in Section 145.022, Florida 

Statutes. 

 

2. That said board will provide funds according to the budget as submitted by said Tax 

Collector and approved by the Board, which will include each and every item of 

expenditure necessary to operate said office, including the salary of the Franklin County 

Tax Collector. 

 

3. That said Board would pay over said funds to the Tax Collector as provided by law or 

upon monthly requisition. 

 

4. That a copy of this resolution be filed with the Florida Department of Banking, the 

Florida Department of Revenue and the Auditor General. 

 

THIS RESOLUTION ADOPTED by the Franklin County Board of County 

Commissioners this 2nd day of FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

                By: 

 

______________________________                      ______________________________ 

Rick Watson, Tax Collector             Ricky Jones, Chairman of the Board 

      

                 Attest: 

 

                ______________________________ 

                                                                                  Michele Maxwell, Clerk of Courts 

                                
112

A.



Florida Federal NG911 Grant Agreement Summary 

 

Background 

In September of 2019, the State of Florida received notification that its Federal Grant Application for an 
NG911 Grant administered by the National Telecommunications Industry Association and Federal 
Department of Transportation was approved.  This grant award in the amount of $6,314,348.00, requires 
the State of Florida and subsequent county and tribal recipients of these funds to comply with certain 
rules and requirements established by the awarding agencies. 

The State of Florida, Department of Management Services is the designated grant manager for this federal 
grant award.  One of the requirements that this grant stipulates includes the necessity of the state to 
provide 40% matching funds as part of the grant program.  The state and the E911 Board have agreed to 
utilize E911 Trust Fund monies and established state grant awards provided by the E911 Board to meet 
this matching funds requirement.   

Additional terms and conditions required by the federal grant are included in the grant agreement 
document, which needs to be signed by an authorized official of the sub-recipient (generally a county or 
tribal organization).   

 

Overview of Grant Requirements 

If an E911 Board grant award will be utilized to comply with the Federal Grant (either federal funds or 
matching state funds), the sub-recipient will receive such notification in the award letter.   

The agreement document outlines all necessary components of compliance with the Federal NG911 Grant 
program, and we have incorporated existing state grant requirements that have been in effect, but, that 
we have not previously required in a signed agreement with sub-recipients.  

 It is the Department’s intent that these grant agreements not impose any unnecessary obligations on the 
counties and tribal organizations, rather the agreements will memorialize in writing existing processes 
and procedures for reimbursement while ensuring compliance with all applicable state and the new 
Federal NG911 Grant rules and laws.  

Since we have a short window for the expenditure of the NG911 Grant program funds, it is important to 
execute the grant award agreement document as soon as possible.  These identified NG911 projects must 
be completed by March 31, 2022. 

If you have any questions regarding the grant agreement, please contact the Florida State E-911 
Coordinator, Leon Simmonds, at leon.simmonds@dms.fl.gov  or (850) 921-0041.  

 

 

113

A.

mailto:leon.simmonds@dms.myflorida.com


Florida E911 Board
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950
Tel: 850-921-4204
Fax: 850-488-9837

Board Members: Laurene J. Anderson  Carolyn Dill-Collier  Chesley Dillon 
Matthew E. Matney  Christie A. Pontis-Mason  Casey E. Reed  Brad Swanson 

 

 

September 21, 2020
  
Ms. Linda Phillips
Franklin County
33 Market Street, Suite 203
Apalachicola, FL 32328
  
FEID #: 59-6000612
  
Subject: Summer 2020 State - Reimbursement Grant Program
  
Dear Ms. Phillips:
  
The State of Florida E911 Board would like to congratulate you on your grant award for E911 revenue funds to
improve the E911 system serving your county.
  
Please see the attached grant award agreement for details regarding applicable funding rules for the NG-911 Federal 
grant program that your grant award may requires.
  
The following provides details concerning the Summer 2020 grant(s) to Franklin County:

GrantNumber CSFA # Amount Requested Amount Approved Purpose Federal Funding

S16-20-09-02 72.003 $188,270.00 $188,270.00

$188,270.00 GIS Data Support Funded

Total Grant Awards: $188,270.00

Recipients of awards of state and/or federal financial assistance are required to comply with the provisions of the Florida 
Single Audit Act.  To assist you, please reference sections 5, 6 and 7 of section 215.97 Florida Statute at the following 
web site address:

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/STATUTES/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_StatuteSearch_String=URL=0200-0299/0215/Sections/0215.97.html 
 

Additionally, since your grant award may include funds that are being used in accordance with rules and laws pertaining 
to the Federal NG-911 Grant Program as either federal or state matching funds, the attached grant agreement 
incorporates these additional terms and conditions and is hereby incorporated into this grant agreement.  You must 
return a signed copy prior to the authorization to transfer funds from the Florida Department of Management Services to 
your County.

114

A.



Summer 2020 State - Reimbursement Grant Program
Page Two

 

 

The Board thanks you for your interest in 911 and improving public safety in Florida and your commendable efforts
towards enhancing your 911 system. It is our hope that your county continues to ensure further public safety
advancements in Florida.
  

 
  
Sincerely,
  

 
  
Matthew Matney, Chief
Bureau of Public Safety - E911
  

 
  
MM/KR
  

 
  
cc: Franklin County 911 Coordinator

115

A.



1 
 

 
Next Generation 911 (NG-911) Additional Terms and Conditions for Rural and State Grant Funded by Federal 

Grant Funding or Deemed State Match Funding 

The State of Florida (hereinafter “State”), Department of Management Services (hereinafter “Department” or 
“DMS”), acting as a pass-through entity, has made this subaward, as defined in 2 CFR §200.92, of Federal Award 
No. 69N37619300000911FL0.  All subrecipients, as defined by 2 CFR §200.93, and all recipients of state funding 
provided in accordance with federal grant matching requirements (hereinafter both referred to, without 
distinction, as “Grantee”) must comply with the terms and conditions specified herein, in accordance with 2 
CFR §200.331.  The terms of this addendum supplement the terms and conditions contained in W Form 1A, 
Application for the E911 Rural County Grant Program or W Form 3A, Application for the E911 State Grant 
Program (hereinafter the “Application”), and the Grantee’s award letter.  

Subaward Agreement 

Federal Award Identification 
Federal Awarding Agency: Joint grant with U.S. Department of Transportation National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), and the U.S. Department of Commerce, National 
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)  
Federal Award Date: August 9, 2019 
State Agency/Pass-Through Entity: The 
Florida Department of Management Services  
 

Sub recipient Name: (name must match name 
associated with FEIN) 
Franklin County Board of County Commissioners  

Federal Award No. (FAIN): 
69N37619300000911FL0 

Subaward Period of Performance: Begins upon 
award (made at the E911 Board approval on 
September 17, 2020), and continues until March 31, 
2022  

Federal Award Period of Performance: 
Start: August 9, 2019      End: March 31, 2022 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this 
Subaward: As specified on the Grantee’s award 
letter 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to 
Grantee by DMS for any purpose, 
including under this agreement: 
$ 188,270.00  
 

Total Amount of this Federal Award 
Committed to Grantee by DMS: 
$ 188,270.00  
 

Federal Award Project Description: The Next Generation 911 (NG-911) Advancement Act 
provides new funding for grants to be used for 1) the implementation and operation of 911 
services, Enhanced 911 (E911) services, migration to an IP-enabled emergency network, and 
adoption and operation of NG911 services and applications; 2) the implementation of IP-
enabled emergency services and applications enabled by NG-911 services, including the 
establishment of IP backbone networks and the application layer software infrastructure 
needed to interconnect the multitude of emergency response organizations; and 3) training 
public safety personnel, including call-takers, first responders, and other individuals and 
organizations who are part of the emergency response chain in 911 services. 
 

116

A.



2 
 

Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance No.: 20.615 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Title: 
911 Grant Program  

Grantee receives federal awards directly from a Federal Awarding Agency: ☐YES ☐ No 
Grantee has disclosed if it has similar subaward or prior experience to DMS: ☐YES ☐ No 

 
1. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
By executing this agreement, the Grantee agrees to the following: 

1.1. The Application, the Grantee’s award letter, and this document, including its attachments and exhibits 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed 
upon by the parties.  If there are any conflicting provisions between the documents that make up the 
Agreement, the following order of precedence applies:   

1.1.1. this document; 
1.1.2. Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance (with its 

Exhibit 1); 
1.1.3. the Grantee’s award letter; and 
1.1.4. the Grantee’s submitted Application. 

1.2. In accordance with sections 365.172 and 365.173, F.S., the Grantee shall perform the tasks specified 
herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

1.3. The term of this agreement is coterminous with the subaward period of performance identified in the 
table above. 

1.4. The parties shall be governed by all applicable state and federal laws , rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the federal 911 Grant Program  Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO), 2 CFR Part 
200, and those identified in the “Applicable Statutes and Regulations” table below. Any express 
reference in this Agreement to a statute, rule, or regulation in no way implies that no other statue, rule, 
or regulation applies. 

1.4.1. The Grantee agrees to conduct all procurements in accordance with 2 CFR §200.318 – 200.326.    
1.4.2. The Grantee agrees that this Agreement is subject to the Federal Funding Accountability and 

Transparency Act (FFATA), which may require the Grantee to report to the FFATA Subaward 
Reporting System (FSRS).  

1.4.3. The Grantee agrees to comply with the State of Florida Reference Guide for State Expenditures, 
which can be obtained at: 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpe
nditures.pdf.  

1.5. This is a cost reimbursement agreement.  This Agreement shall not exceed the amount specified on the 
Grantee’s award letter, and payment shall only be issued by the Department after acceptance of the 
Grantee’s performance as set forth by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  No renewals of this 
Agreement are available. 

1.6. The Grantee agrees to use the funds awarded under this Agreement only for costs directly incurred for 
the grant project activities specified in the Application and costs consistent with the cost principles 
identified in 2 CFR Part 200, including Subpart E of such regulations. Costs must be reasonable, 
necessary, allocable, and allowable for the approved project and only incurred during the period of 
performance specified in the table above.  In addition to the “Specifically Excluded E911 Expenses,” 
identified on the Application,  ineligible costs that  are not reimbursable under this Agreement include, 

117

A.

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


3 
 

but are not limited to, costs to operate legacy E911 or 911 systems, costs to operate the NG911 system 
after it is fully operational, activities related to construction, and independent verification and validation  
testing for product service, and system purchases.  

1.6.1. The Grantee shall refund to the Department any balance of unobligated funds that was advanced 
or paid to the Grantee. 

1.6.2. The Grantee shall refund any monies used for ineligible purposes under the laws, rules, and 
regulations governing the use of these funds. 

1.6.3. The Grantee agrees that this Agreement is not for indirect cost rate or research and development.   
1.7. The Grantee agrees that the final request for reimbursement and supporting documentation for 

incurred obligations shall be submitted to the Department no later than the term of this Agreement.  
 

2. AUTHORITY  
The Department has been appropriated funds from the Emergency Communications Number E911 System Trust 
to provide grants to counties for the purpose of upgrading E911 systems.  The Department has the authority, 
pursuant to section 282.702, F.S., to enter into this Agreement and to disburse the appropriated funds to the 
Grantee under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
3. OBLIGATION TO PAY  
The State’s obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the 
Legislature and the funding sources set forth in the Federal Award Identification and is subject to any 
modification in accordance with either Chapter 216, F.S., or the Florida Constitution. 
 
4. MODIFICATION  
The terms of the Application are hereby modified as follows: 

4.1. The following is hereby added to Section 9.3: 
The E911 Board will not approve any change requests that do not comply with the federal grant.  
4.2. The following is hereby added to Section 9.3.2: 
Time extensions for awards funded with federal grant money, as identified on the Grantee’s award letter, 
must not exceed the period of performance specified in the table above. If the time extension for an award 
that is State match, only the funds expended within the period of performance will be considered as state 
match.   
4.3. The Scope of Work is hereby modified to specify the following deliverable(s): 

 
Deliverable No. 1 – Tasks to Integrate GIS Data Support 
Performance Standard Documentation Financial Consequences 
Complete all work to 
Integrate GIS Data 
Support, in accordance 
with the Grantee’s 
contract with its vendor, 
which is attached as 
Attachment 2 [note: this 
Agreement will be 
amended to attach this 

1) Reimbursement claim in 
accordance with Section 
15, below. 

2) The Grantee shall submit 
copies of:  
a. Any contracts or 

purchase orders with 
vendors; 

b. Vendor invoices; 

If Grantee fails to comply 
with any term of the award, 
DMS shall take one or more 
of the following actions: 
 
1. Temporarily withhold cash 
payments pending correction 
of the deficiency by Grantee; 

118

A.



4 
 

contract once obtained by 
the Grantee].  

c. Proof of payment to 
vendors; and 

d. Proof of receipt of 
deliverables. 

2. Disallow all or part of the 
cost of the activity or action 
not in compliance; 
3. Wholly or partly suspend 
or terminate the current 
award for the Grantee;  
4. Suspend or deny future 
grant awards; or 
5. Take other remedies that 
may be legally available. 
 
DMS will provide no 
reimbursement for any 
improvement that does not 
meet the standards 
established in this award. 
 

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $188,270.00 
 

5. CONTACTS 
In accordance with section 215.971(2), F.S., and 2 CFR §200.331(a)(x), 

5.1. The Department’s Grant Manager is responsible for enforcing performance of this Agreement’s terms 
and conditions and will serve as the Department’s liaison with the Grantee.  As part of his or her duties, 
the Department’s Grant Manager will: 

5.1.1. Monitor and document the Grantee’s performance of the terms of this Agreement, which may 
include but shall not be limited to, onsite visits by DMS staff, limited scope audits, or desktop 
monitoring; 

5.1.2. Review all documentation for which the Grantee requests payment; and 
5.1.3. Reconcile and verify all funds received against all funds expended during the period of this 

Agreement and produce a final reconciliation report that identifies any funds paid in excess of 
the expenditures incurred by the Grantee.  

The Department’s Grant Managers responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement are: 

Leon Simmonds, State 911 Coordinator 
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd Suite 260 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
 
Alrene Hicks, Grant Manager 
4030 Esplanade Way  
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

 
 

5.2. The Grantee’s Agreement Manager is responsible for monitoring performance of this Agreement’s 
terms and conditions and will serve as the Grantee’s liaison with the Department.  As part of his or her 

119

A.



5 
 

duties, the Grantee’s Agreement Manager shall provide all reports, as well as any other required 
documents under this Agreement, to the E911 Board in accordance with Section 9.0 of the Application.   

The Grantee’s Agreement Manager responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement is:  
 
The County 911 Coordinator, named in the Application.     
 

5.3. In the event that different managers or addresses are designated by either party after execution of this 
Agreement, notice of the name, title, and address of the new manager will be provided to the other 
party in writing.  Such changes do not require a formal written amendment to the Agreement. 
 

6. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS  
6.1. The Grantee shall retain all its records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and 

any other documents, including electronic storage media, pertinent to this Agreement in accordance 
with the record retention requirements of Part V of Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
State and Federal Financial Assistance.  The Grantee shall cooperate with the Department to facilitate 
the duplication and transfer of such records or documents upon the Department’s request.     

6.2. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, and documents in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles to sufficiently and properly reflect all expenditures of funds provided by the 
Department under this Agreement. 

6.3. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable requirements of section 215.97, F.S., and Attachment 1, 
Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance. If the Grantee is required to 
undergo an audit, the Grantee shall disclose all related party transactions to the auditor.   
  

7. RECORDS 
7.1 As required by section 215.97, F.S., and Rule 69I-5.006 Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C), the Department, 

the Department of Financial Services, and the Florida Auditor General, or any of their authorized 
representatives, shall enjoy the right of access to any documents, financial statements, papers, or other 
records of the Grantee which are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to make audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcripts.  The right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Grantee's 
personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.  This provision does not 
limit the Department’s authority to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional audits or evaluations 
of state financial assistance or limit the authority of any state awarding agency inspector general, the Auditor 
General, or any other State official. 

7.2 The Grantee shall maintain all records, including those pertaining to any and all contractors, subcontractors, 
and consultants to be paid from funds provided under this Agreement and further including documentation 
of all program costs in a form sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and objectives of 
the Application, and all other applicable laws and regulations, for the longer of five (5) years after the end 
of the performance period specified in the table above and all pending matters or the period required by 
the General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (available at: 
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/). 

120

A.

http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/


6 
 

7.3 If the Grantee’s record retention requirements terminate prior to the requirements stated herein, the 
Grantee may meet the Department’s record retention requirements for this Agreement by transferring its 
records to the Department at that time, and by destroying duplicate records in accordance with section 
501.171, F.S., and, if applicable, section 119.0701, F.S.  The Grantee shall adhere to established information 
destruction standards such as those established by the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
Special Publication 800-88, “Guidelines for Media Sanitization” (2006).  See http://csrc.nist.gov. 

7.4 The Grantee's performance under this Agreement shall be subject to the 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 225 
(OMB CIRCULAR A–87).  

7.5 The Grantee shall be subject to Federal Acquisition Regulations 31.2 and 931.2. 
 

8. PUBLIC RECORDS 
The Grantee, an agency as defined in section 119.011(2), F.S., must comply with the requirements of Chapter 
119, F.S., in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. The Grantee must also ensure that any 
contractors and subcontractors that perform work pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements 
of Chapter 119, F.S., as applicable. 
 
9. LIABILITY 

9.1. The Grantee is solely responsible to parties it deals with in carrying out the terms of this Agreement 
and, subject to the limitation of section 768.28, F.S., the Grantee shall hold the Department harmless 
against all claims of whatever nature by third parties arising from performance under this Agreement. 

9.2. The Grantee, a subdivision as defined in section 768.28, F.S., agrees to be fully responsible for its 
negligent or tortious acts or omissions which result in claims or suits against the Department and agrees 
to be liable for any damages proximately caused by the acts or omissions to the extent set forth in 
section 768.28, F.S.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity 
by the Grantee.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed as consent by a State agency or 
subdivision of the State to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of any contract. 

 
10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 
If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations on the part of the E911 Board  to make 
any further payment of funds shall, if the Department elects, terminate and the Department has the option to 
exercise any of its remedies set forth herein.  However, the Department may make payments or partial 
payments after any Events of Default without waiving the right to exercise such remedies and without becoming 
liable to make any further payment. The Events of Default are: 

10.1. If any warranty or representation made by the Grantee in this Agreement or any previous agreement 
with the Department is or becomes false or misleading in any respect; 

10.2. If the Grantee fails to keep or timely perform any of the obligations, terms, or covenants in this 
Agreement or any previous agreement with the Department and has not cured them in timely 
fashion; 

10.3. If the Grantee or is unable or unwilling to meet its obligations under this Agreement; 
10.4. If material adverse changes occur in the financial condition of the Grantee at any time during the 

term of this Agreement; or 
10.5. If any reports required by this Agreement have not been submitted to the Department or have been 

submitted with incorrect, incomplete, or insufficient information. 
 

121

A.

http://csrc.nist.gov/


7 
 

11. REMEDIES 
If an Event of Default occurs, then the Department shall provide a written notice to the Grantee, and, upon the 
Grantee's failure to cure the default within the thirty (30) calendar days, the Department may exercise any one 
(1) or more of the following remedies, either concurrently or consecutively: 

11.1. terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12, Termination, below; 
11.2. withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a request for payment; 
11.3. exercise any corrective or remedial actions, including but not limited to: 

11.3.1. request additional information from the Grantee to determine the reasons for or the extent 
of non-compliance or lack of performance; 

11.3.2. issue a written warning to advise that more serious measures may be taken if the situation is 
not corrected; or 

11.3.3. advise the Grantee to suspend, discontinue, or refrain from incurring costs for any activities 
in question. 

 
Pursuing any of the above remedies will not preclude the Department from pursuing any other remedies 
available under this Agreement or at law or in equity.  If the Department waives any right or remedy in this 
Agreement or fails to insist on strict performance by the Grantee, it does not affect, extend, or waive any other 
right or remedy of the Department, or affect the later exercise of the same right or remedy by the Department 
for any other default by the Grantee. 
 
12. TERMINATION 

12.1. Termination Due to the Lack of Funds.  If funds become unavailable for the Agreement’s purpose, 
such event will not constitute a default by the Department or the State.  The Department agrees to 
notify the Grantee in writing at the earliest possible time if funds are no longer available.  In the 
event that any funding identified by the Grantee as funds to be provided for completion of the 
project as described herein becomes unavailable, including if any State funds upon which this 
Agreement depends are withdrawn or redirected, the Department may terminate this Agreement 
by providing written notice to the Grantee.  The Department will be the final authority as to the 
availability of funds.   

12.2. Termination for Cause.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for cause after ten (10) days 
of a written notice, which will be issued after the 30-day cure period ends.  Cause includes, but is not 
limited to, misuse of funds, fraud, lack of compliance with applicable rules, laws, and regulations, 
failure to perform on time, or refusal to permit public access to any document, paper, letter, or other 
material subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., unless exempt from Section 24(a) of Article I 
of the State Constitution and section 119.07(1), F.S., or applicable state or federal law, which the 
Grantee created or received under this Agreement. 

12.3. Termination for Convenience.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for convenience or 
when it determines, in its sole discretion, that continuing the Agreement would not produce 
beneficial results in line with the further expenditure of funds by providing the Grantee with thirty 
(30) calendar days’ prior written notice. 

12.4. Mutual Termination.  The parties may agree to terminate this Agreement for their mutual 
convenience through a written amendment of this Agreement.  The amendment will state the 
effective date of the termination and the procedures for proper closeout of the Agreement. 

12.5. Grantee Responsibilities upon Termination.  Upon notice of termination, the Grantee shall: 
12.5.1. not incur new obligations for the terminated portion of the Agreement; and 

122

A.



8 
 

12.5.2. cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible.  Costs incurred after receipt of the 
termination notice are disallowed.  The Grantee shall not be relieved of liability to the 
Department because of any breach of this Agreement by the Grantee.  The Department may, 
to the extent authorized by law, withhold payments to the Grantee for the purpose of set-off 
until the exact amount of damages due to the Department from the Grantee is determined. 

 
13. RESULTING THIRD PARTY CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 
13.1 The Grantee may contract with third parties to perform work.  The Grantee remains fully responsible for 

satisfactory completion of any and all work performed by any contractors and subcontractors.  
13.2 With the Grantee’s approval, the Grantee’s contractor may subcontract work performed, and the 

Grantee’s contractor will be fully responsible for satisfactory completion of all subcontracted work. 
13.3 The Grantee agrees all Grantee contracts or subcontracts entered into pursuant to this Agreement for 

which the State Legislature is in any part a funding source shall contain: 
13.3.1 language requiring the contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) who are paid from funds provided 

under this Agreement (i) be bound by the terms of this Agreement; (ii) be bound by all applicable 
state and federal laws and regulations; and (iii) hold the Department and Grantee harmless 
against all claims of whatever nature arising out of the performance of work under this 
Agreement to the extent allowed and required by law;  

13.3.2 all applicable provisions from Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200—Contract Provisions For Non-
Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards; and 

13.3.3 without modification, all paragraphs contained in Section 16, Instructions for Lower Tier 
Participants, of this Agreement. 

 
14. MANDATED CONDITIONS 
14.1. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue for any actions arising 

out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County.   
14.2. If any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any applicable statute or rule or is unenforceable, 

then the provision shall be null and void to the extent of the conflict and shall be severable but shall not 
invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. 

14.3. In accordance with Executive Order 11-116, the Grantee is required to utilize the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired 
during the term of the Agreement for the services specified in the Agreement.  The Grantee must also 
include a requirement in contracts that the contractor must utilize the E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the Agreement term.  If 
the Grantee is not enrolled in DHS E-Verify System, it will do so within five (5) days of notice of the 
Agreement execution. The link to E-Verify is http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify.  

14.4. In accordance with section 11.062 and 216.345, F.S., funds received under this Agreement are not to be 
used for the purpose of lobbying or used to directly or indirectly influence legislation or any other official 
action by the Florida Legislature, the judicial brand, or any state agency. 
 

 
15. MISCELLANEOUS  

15.1. Payment Process.  Subject to the terms and conditions established in this Agreement and the billing 
procedures established by the Department, the Department agrees to pay the Grantee in accordance 
with section 215.422, F.S.  The applicable interest rate can be obtained at:  
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm.   

123

A.

http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm


9 
 

15.2. Invoicing. The Grantee shall submit all claims for reimbursement and for progress payments, as 
described in the Application, using Appendix IV, Financial Reimbursement of Expenditures Reporting 
Form, to the Application.  The Grantee may submit claims to the Board as needed; however, the Grantee 
shall not submit more than one claim per month. After receipt of the reimbursement claim, and in 
accordance with the payment provisions established in this Agreement, the Department shall disburse 
the amount of funds approved by the Board.   

15.3. Invoice Detail.  Invoices submitted by the Grantee must fulfill all requirements specified in the scope of 
work and include all supporting documentation, when applicable.  The Grantee shall also submit 
invoices in sufficient detail to fulfill all applicable requirements of the State of Florida Reference Guide 
for State Expenditures.   

15.4. Intellectual Property.  Where activities supported by this Agreement result in the creation of intellectual 
property rights, the Grantee shall notify the Department, and the Department will determine whether 
the Grantee will be required to grant the Department a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, 
nonexclusive license to use, and to authorize others to use for State government purposes, any resulting 
patented, copyrighted, or trademarked work products developed under this Agreement. The 
Department will also determine whether the Grantee will be required to pay all or a portion of any 
royalties resulting from such patents, copyrights, or trademarks.  

15.5. Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to Chapter 112, F.S.  The Grantee shall disclose the name 
of any officer, director, employee, or other agent who is also an employee of the State.  The Grantee 
shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, more than a five 
percent (5%) interest in the Grantee or its affiliates. 

15.6. Non-Discrimination.  The Grantee shall not unlawfully discriminate against any individual employed in 
the performance of this Agreement due to race, religion, color, sex, physical handicap unrelated to such 
person’s ability to engage in this work, national origin, ancestry, or age.  The Grantee shall provide a 
harassment-free workplace, and any allegation of harassment shall be given priority attention and 
action. 

15.7. Electronic Funds Transfer Enrollment. The Grantee agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), 
offered by the State’s Chief Financial Officer, within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party signed this 
Agreement. Copies of the authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found at: 
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/.  Questions should be directed to the EFT Section 
at (850) 413-5517.  Once enrolled, invoice payments will be made by EFT. 

15.8. Survival.  Any right or obligation of the parties in this Agreement which, by its express terms or nature 
and context, is intended to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement, will survive any such 
termination or expiration.  

15.9. Notices.  All notices from both parties, outside of the notice of award and notices related to the business 
of the E911 Board, shall be effective when placed in the United States, first class mail, postage prepaid, 
by registered or certified mail-return receipt requested, to the address in section 5 herein. 

  
16.0 INSTRUCTIONS FOR LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT CERTIFICATION  

The provisions in this section are required by Section f)7., Certifications Regarding Debarment and Suspension, of 
the Revised NOFO.  For purposes of this section, the Department is the primary tier participant; the Grantee and 
all vendors with which the Grantee contracts to perform work pursuant to this Agreement are lower tier 
participants; and “proposal” means this Agreement.  Furthermore, the Grantee must include the following 

124

A.

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/


10 
 

provisions, without modification, in all contracts with vendors performing work pursuant to this Agreement (see 
subsection 6, below).    

 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing 
the certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Parts 
180, 1200 and 1326.  

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
was placed when this transaction was entered. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment.  

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the 
person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

4. The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, 
participant, person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180, 1200 and 1326.  You may contact the person to whom this proposal is 
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower 
tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 
9, Subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated. 

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it 
will include the clause titled "Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including 
the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- 
Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions and will require lower 
tier participants to comply with 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 
48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as 
well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each participant may, but is 
not required to, check the System for Award Management Exclusions website 
(https://www.sam.gov). 

125

A.

https://www.sam.gov/


11 
 

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a 
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a 
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction 
with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, Subpart 9.4, suspended, 
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension 
or debarment. 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - 
Lower Tier Covered Transactions: 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that 
neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by 
any Federal department or agency. 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements 
in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 

 

 
I hereby affirm my authority and responsibility for the use of funds requested.  
 
Grantee 
 
___________________________________________________________               Date: _____________                                           
Signature - Chair, Board of County Commissioners or County Manager 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
Grantor 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Department of Management Services                                                                             Date: ______________ 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 

 

126

A.



12 
 

APPLICABLE STATUTES AND REGULATIONS 
The Grantee and the Department shall be governed by all applicable State and federal laws, rules, and 
regulations, including those identified in this table.   
 
General Requirements 

Florida Statutes (F.S.) 
§ 11.062, F.S. - Use of state funds for lobbying prohibited; penalty 
§ 20.055, F.S. - Agency inspectors general 
Chapter 112, F.S. - Public Officers and Employees: General Provisions 
Chapter 119, F.S. - Public Records 
§ 215.34, F.S. - State funds; noncollectible items; procedure 
§ 215.422, F.S. - Payments, warrants, and invoices; processing time limits; dispute resolution; agency or 
judicial branch compliance 
§ 215.97, F.S. - Florida Single Audit Act 
§ 215.971, F.S. - Agreements funded with federal or state assistance 
§ 216.301, F.S. - Appropriations; undisbursed balances 
§ 216.347, F.S. - Disbursement of grants and aids appropriations for lobbying prohibited 
§ 216.3475, F.S. - Maximum rate of payment for services funded under General Appropriations Act or 
awarded on a noncompetitive basis 
§ 216.181(16), F.S.- Approved budgets for operations and fixed capital outlay 
§ 273.02, F.S. - Record and inventory of certain property 
§ 287.133, F.S. - Public entity crime; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public 
entities 
§ 287.134, F.S. - Discrimination; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public entities 
§ 287.135, F.S. - Prohibition against contracting with scrutinized companies 
Chapter 443, F.S. - Reemployment Assistance 
§ 501.171, F.S. - Security of confidential personal information 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) 
Rule Chapter 69I-5 - State Financial Assistance 

Memoranda 
CFO Memorandum No. 02 (2012-13) - Contract and Grant Reviews and Related Payment Processing 
Requirements 
CFO Memorandum No. 20 (2019-20) - Compliance Requirements for Agreements 

State E911 Plan and E911 Board Statutes and Rules 

Florida Statutes 
Chapter 365, F.S. - Use of Telephones and Facsimile Machines 

Florida Administrative Code 
Rule Chapter 60FF-6 - State E911 Plan 
Rule Chapter 60FF1-5 - E911 Board 

 

 

 

127

A.



13 
 

 

Federal Rules 

NOTE: Compliance with the following is required for grantees awarded with federal funds or state match funds, 
as identified in the Grantee’s award letter.  

United States Code (U.S.C.) 
8 U.S.C. Chapter 12 - Immigration and Nationality (Immigration and Nationality Act) 
10 U.S.C. 2409 - Contractor employees: protection from reprisal for disclosure of certain information 
41 U.S.C. 4304 - Specific costs not allowable under Federal Procurement Policy 
41 U.S.C. 4310 - Civil, Criminal, and Administrative proceeding costs of contractors not allowable 
41 U.S.C. 4712 - Enhancement of contractor protection from reprisal for disclosure of certain information 
42 U.S.C. Chapter 126 - Equal Opportunity for Individuals with Disabilities (Americans with Disabilities Act) 

United States Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 
2 C.F.R. Part 25 - Universal Identifier and System for Award Management 
2 C.F.R. Part 170 - Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information 
2 C.F.R. Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
2 C.F.R. Part 1201 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards as adopted and amended by the United States Department of Transportation 
2 C.F.R. Part 1327 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards as adopted by the United States Department of Commerce 
47 C.F.R. Part 400 - 911 Grant Program  

Presidential Executive Orders 
Exec. Order No. 13043 - Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States 
Exec. Order No. 13513 - Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving 

Other 
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) No. NHTSA-NTIA-911-GRANT-PROGRAM-2018, 911 Grant Program 
NOFO (Aug. 9, 2018) 
Revision to NOFO No. NHTSA-NTIA-911-GRANT-PROGRAM-2018, 911 Grant Program NOFO (Feb. 1, 2019) 

 

Catalog of State Financial 
Assistance number: 

72.003 
 

Catalog of State Financial Assistance title: 
 

 

 

State Grant Number: (S16-20-09-02)                          State Grant Award Date: 09/17/2020  
 

128

A.



DFS-A2-CL Page -1- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

Attachment 1 
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR AWARDS OF STATE AND FEDERAL 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

The administration of resources awarded by the Department of Management Services 
(Department) to the Grantee may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department, as 
described in this section.  

MONITORING 

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements, and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below), 
monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by Department staff, limited 
scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures.  By entering into this 
agreement, the Grantee agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures or 
processes deemed appropriate by the Department.  In the event the Department determines that 
a limited scope audit of the Grantee is appropriate, the Grantee agrees to comply with any 
additional instructions provided by Department staff to the Grantee regarding such audit.  The 
Grantee further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or 
audits deemed necessary by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 

AUDITS 

Part I:  Federally Funded 
This part is applicable if the Grantee is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as 
defined in 2 CFR §200.90, §200.64, and §200.70. 

1. A grantee that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a 
single or program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, 
Subpart F - Audit Requirements.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the federal resources awarded 
through the Department by this agreement.  In determining the federal awards expended in 
its fiscal year, the Grantee shall consider all sources of federal awards, including federal 
resources received from the Department.  The determination of amounts of federal awards 
expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established in 2 CFR §§200.502-
503.  An audit of the Grantee conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR §200.514 will meet the requirements of this Part. 

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall fulfill the 
requirements relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR §§200.508-512. 

3. A grantee that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required 
to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - 
Audit Requirements.  If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its 
fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 
CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-
federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from Grantee resources 
obtained from other than federal entities). 

Part II:  State Funded 
In the event that the Grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to 
or in excess of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such Grantee (for fiscal years ending June 30, 
2017, or thereafter), the Grantee must have a state single or project-specific audit for such 
fiscal year in accordance with section 215.97, F.S.; applicable rules of the Department of 

129

A.



DFS-A2-CL Page -2- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

Financial Services; and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit 
and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the 
state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this agreement.  In 
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the Grantee shall 
consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance 
received from the Department, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State 
financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources 
received by a nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements. 

1. For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall ensure that 
the audit complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8), F.S.  This includes 
submission of a financial reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S., and 
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

2. If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, or thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of section 215.97, F.S., is not required.  If the Grantee expends less than 
$750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of section 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Grantee’s resources obtained from other than state entities). 

Part III:  Other Audit Requirements 
N/A 
Part IV:  Report Submission 

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart 
F - Audit Requirements, and required by Part I of this form shall be submitted, when required 
by 2 CFR §200.512, by or on behalf of the Grantee directly to the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR §200.36 and §200.512. 

  The FAC’s website provides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the 
single audit reporting package.  Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system 
may be found at the OMB website. 

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by Part II of this form shall be submitted by 
or on behalf of the Grantee directly to each of the following: 

a. The Department at each of the following addresses: 

Electronic copies (preferred):   
E911BoardElectronicGrantReports@dms.myflorida.com 
 
or 
 
Paper (hard copy):   
The Department of Management Services 
E911 Board 
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd.  
Tallahassee Fl, 32399 
 
 

b. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

  Auditor General 

130

A.



DFS-A2-CL Page -3- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

  Local Government Audits/342 
  Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
  111 West Madison Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 

  The Auditor General’s website (https://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 
electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 

3. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the 
Department pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable. 

4. Grantees, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for audits done 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the 
Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was delivered to the 
Grantee in correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

Part V:  Record Retention 
The Grantee shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the 
award(s) and this agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued, 
and shall allow the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General access to such 
records upon request.  The Grantee shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to 
the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon request for a period of five (5) 
years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department. 

 

131

A.

https://flauditor.gov/


DFS-A2-CL Page -4- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

EXHIBIT 1 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 

1. Federal Program A: 

Federal/State Project: Franklin County GIS Support 
Federal/State Awarding Agency: State of Florida, Department of Management Services 
Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title and Number: 72.003 Prepaid Next Generation 911 
(NG911) State Grant Program 
Amount: $188,270.00 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to the Federal Resources 
  Awarded Pursuant to this Agreement are as Follows: 

1. Federal Program A: 

Federal/State Project: Franklin County GIS Support 
Federal/State Awarding Agency: State of Florida, Department of Management Services 
Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title and Number: 72.003 Prepaid Next Generation 911 
(NG911) State Grant Program 
Amount: $188,270.00 

2. Federal Program B: 

N/A 

State Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 
Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 

1. Federal Program A: 

  N/A 

2. Federal Program B: 

  N/A 

Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 
1. State Project A: 

N/A 
 

2. State Project B: 

  N/A 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to State Resources Awarded 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Are as Follows: 
The compliance requirements are as stated in Grant Agreement (S16-20-09-02) between the 
Grantee and the Department, entered in State Fiscal Year 2020-21.  
 

132

A.



Florida Federal NG911 Grant Agreement Summary 

 

Background 

In September of 2019, the State of Florida received notification that its Federal Grant Application for an 
NG911 Grant administered by the National Telecommunications Industry Association and Federal 
Department of Transportation was approved.  This grant award in the amount of $6,314,348.00, requires 
the State of Florida and subsequent county and tribal recipients of these funds to comply with certain 
rules and requirements established by the awarding agencies. 

The State of Florida, Department of Management Services is the designated grant manager for this federal 
grant award.  One of the requirements that this grant stipulates includes the necessity of the state to 
provide 40% matching funds as part of the grant program.  The state and the E911 Board have agreed to 
utilize E911 Trust Fund monies and established state grant awards provided by the E911 Board to meet 
this matching funds requirement.   

Additional terms and conditions required by the federal grant are included in the grant agreement 
document, which needs to be signed by an authorized official of the sub-recipient (generally a county or 
tribal organization).   

 

Overview of Grant Requirements 

If an E911 Board grant award will be utilized to comply with the Federal Grant (either federal funds or 
matching state funds), the sub-recipient will receive such notification in the award letter.   

The agreement document outlines all necessary components of compliance with the Federal NG911 Grant 
program, and we have incorporated existing state grant requirements that have been in effect, but, that 
we have not previously required in a signed agreement with sub-recipients.  

 It is the Department’s intent that these grant agreements not impose any unnecessary obligations on the 
counties and tribal organizations, rather the agreements will memorialize in writing existing processes 
and procedures for reimbursement while ensuring compliance with all applicable state and the new 
Federal NG911 Grant rules and laws.  

Since we have a short window for the expenditure of the NG911 Grant program funds, it is important to 
execute the grant award agreement document as soon as possible.  These identified NG911 projects must 
be completed by March 31, 2022. 

If you have any questions regarding the grant agreement, please contact the Florida State E-911 
Coordinator, Leon Simmonds, at leon.simmonds@dms.myflorida.com  or (850) 921-0041.  

 

 

133

A.

mailto:leon.simmonds@dms.myflorida.com


Florida E911 Board
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950
Tel: 850-922-7451

Fax: 850-488-9837

134

A.



Additionally, since your grant award may include funds that are being used in accordance with rules and laws 
pertaining to the Federal NG-911 Grant Program as either federal or state matching funds, the attached grant 
agreement incorporates these additional terms and conditions and is hereby incorporated into this grant 
agreement.  You must return a signed copy prior to the authorization to transfer funds from the Florida Department 
of Management Services to your County.

135

A.



1 
 

 
 Additional Terms and Conditions for Rural Grant  

 The terms of this document supplement the terms and conditions contained in W Form 1A, Application for the 
E911 Rural County Grant Program (hereinafter the “Application”), and the Grantee’s award letter.  

1. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
By executing this agreement, the Grantee agrees to the following: 

1.1. The Application, the Grantee’s award letter, and this document, including its attachments and exhibits 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed 
upon by the parties.  If there are any conflicting provisions between the documents that make up the 
Agreement, the following order of precedence applies:   

1.1.1. this document; 
1.1.2. Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance (with its 

Exhibit 1); 
1.1.3. the Grantee’s award letter; and 
1.1.4. the Grantee’s submitted Application. 

1.2. In accordance with sections 365.172 and 365.173, F.S., the Grantee shall perform the tasks specified 
herein in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

1.3. The term of this agreement begins upon award (made at the E911 Board meeting on April 16, 2020) and 
ends on May 4, 2021 

1.4. The parties shall be governed by all applicable state and federal laws , rules, and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, those identified in the “Applicable Statutes and Regulations” table below. Any 
express reference in this Agreement to a statute, rule, or regulation in no way implies that no other 
statue, rule, or regulation applies. 

1.4.1. The Grantee agrees to comply with the State of Florida Reference Guide for State Expenditures, 
which can be obtained at: 
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpe
nditures.pdf.  

1.5. This is a cost reimbursement agreement.  This Agreement shall not exceed the amount specified on the 
Grantee’s award letter, and payment shall only be issued by the Department after acceptance of the 
Grantee’s performance as set forth by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  No renewals of this 
Agreement are available. 

1.6. The Grantee agrees to use the funds awarded under this Agreement only for costs directly incurred for 
the grant project activities specified in the Application. Costs must be reasonable, necessary, allocable, 
and allowable for the approved project and only incurred during the term of this Agreement  

1.6.1. The Grantee shall refund to the Department any balance of unobligated funds that was advanced 
or paid to the Grantee. 

1.6.2. The Grantee shall refund any monies used for ineligible purposes under the laws, rules, and 
regulations governing the use of these funds. 

1.7. The Grantee agrees that the final request for reimbursement and supporting documentation for 
incurred obligations shall be submitted to the Department no later than the term of this Agreement.  
 

2. AUTHORITY  

136

A.

https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf


2 
 

The Department has been appropriated funds from the Emergency Communications Number E911 System Trust 
to provide grants to counties for the purpose of upgrading E911 systems.  The Department has the authority, 
pursuant to section 282.702, F.S., to enter into this Agreement and to disburse the appropriated funds to the 
Grantee under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

3. OBLIGATION TO PAY  

The State’s obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the 
Legislature and the funding sources set forth in the Federal Award Identification and is subject to any 
modification in accordance with either Chapter 216, F.S., or the Florida Constitution. 

4. MODIFICATION  
4.1. The Scope of Work in the Application is hereby modified to specify the following deliverable(s): 

 
Deliverable No. 1 – Tasks to complete: One year E911 System and Map Maintenance 
Performance Standard Documentation Financial Consequences 
Complete all work to One 
year System and Map 
Maintenance in 
accordance with the 
Grantee’s contract with its 
vendor, which is attached 
as Attachment 2 [note: 
this Agreement will be 
amended to attach this 
contract once obtained by 
the Grantee].  

1) Reimbursement claim in 
accordance with Section 
15, below. 

2) The Grantee shall submit 
copies of:  
a. Any contracts or 

purchase orders with 
vendors; 

b. Vendor invoices; 
c. Proof of payment to 

vendors; and 
d. Proof of receipt of 

deliverables. 

If Grantee fails to comply 
with any term of the award, 
DMS shall take one or more 
of the following actions: 
 
1. Temporarily withhold cash 
payments pending correction 
of the deficiency by Grantee; 
2. Disallow all or part of the 
cost of the activity or action 
not in compliance; 
3. Wholly or partly suspend 
or terminate the current 
award for the Grantee;  
4. Suspend or deny future 
grant awards; or 
5. Take other remedies that 
may be legally available. 
 
DMS will provide no 
reimbursement for any 
improvement that does not 
meet the standards 
established in this award. 
 

TOTAL REIMBURSABLE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $34,366.21 

 
5. CONTACTS 

137

A.



3 
 

5.1. The Department’s Grant Manager is responsible for enforcing performance of this Agreement’s terms 
and conditions and will serve as the Department’s liaison with the Grantee.  As part of his or her duties, 
the Department’s Grant Manager will: 

5.1.1. Monitor and document the Grantee’s performance of the terms of this Agreement, which may 
include but shall not be limited to, onsite visits by DMS staff, limited scope audits, or desktop 
monitoring; 

5.1.2. Review all documentation for which the Grantee requests payment; and 
5.1.3. Reconcile and verify all funds received against all funds expended during the period of this 

Agreement and produce a final reconciliation report that identifies any funds paid in excess of 
the expenditures incurred by the Grantee.  

The Department’s Grant Managers responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement are: 

 
Leon Simmonds, State 911 Coordinator 
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd Suite 260 
Tallahassee, FL 32399 
 
Alrene Hicks, Grant Manager 
4030 Esplanade Way  
Tallahassee, FL 32399 

 
 

5.2. The Grantee’s Agreement Manager is responsible for monitoring performance of this Agreement’s 
terms and conditions and will serve as the Grantee’s liaison with the Department.  As part of his or her 
duties, the Grantee’s Agreement Manager shall provide all reports, as well as any other required 
documents under this Agreement, to the E911 Board in accordance with Section 9.0 of the Application.   

The Grantee’s Agreement Manager responsible for the 
administration of this Agreement is:  
 
The County 911 Coordinator, named in the Application.     
 

5.3. In the event that different managers or addresses are designated by either party after execution of this 
Agreement, notice of the name, title, and address of the new manager will be provided to the other 
party in writing.  Such changes do not require a formal written amendment to the Agreement. 
 

6. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS  
6.1. The Grantee shall retain all its records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and 

any other documents, including electronic storage media, pertinent to this Agreement in accordance 
with the record retention requirements of Part V of Attachment 1, Audit Requirements for Awards of 
State and Federal Financial Assistance.  The Grantee shall cooperate with the Department to facilitate 
the duplication and transfer of such records or documents upon the Department’s request.     

138

A.



4 
 

6.2. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, and documents in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles to sufficiently and properly reflect all expenditures of funds provided by the 
Department under this Agreement. 

6.3. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable requirements of section 215.97, F.S., and Attachment 1, 
Audit Requirements for Awards of State and Federal Financial Assistance. If the Grantee is required to 
undergo an audit, the Grantee shall disclose all related party transactions to the auditor.   
  

7. RECORDS 
 
7.1 As required by section 215.97, F.S., and Rule 69I-5.006 Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C), the Department, 

the Department of Financial Services, and the Florida Auditor General, or any of their authorized 
representatives, shall enjoy the right of access to any documents, financial statements, papers, or other 
records of the Grantee which are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to make audits, examinations, 
excerpts, and transcripts.  The right of access also includes timely and reasonable access to the Grantee's 
personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.  This provision does not 
limit the Department’s authority to conduct or arrange for the conduct of additional audits or evaluations 
of state financial assistance or limit the authority of any state awarding agency inspector general, the Auditor 
General, or any other State official. 

7.2 The Grantee shall maintain all records, including those pertaining to any and all contractors, subcontractors, 
and consultants to be paid from funds provided under this Agreement and further including documentation 
of all program costs in a form sufficient to determine compliance with the requirements and objectives of 
the Application, and all other applicable laws and regulations, for the longer of five (5) years after the end 
of the performance period specified in the table above and all pending matters or the period required by 
the General Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (available at: 
http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/). 

7.3 If the Grantee’s record retention requirements terminate prior to the requirements stated herein, the 
Grantee may meet the Department’s record retention requirements for this Agreement by transferring its 
records to the Department at that time, and by destroying duplicate records in accordance with section 
501.171, F.S., and, if applicable, section 119.0701, F.S.  The Grantee shall adhere to established information 
destruction standards such as those established by the National Institute of Standards and Technology 
Special Publication 800-88, “Guidelines for Media Sanitization” (2006).  See http://csrc.nist.gov. 

7.4 The Grantee's performance under this Agreement shall be subject to the 2 CFR Part 200 and 2 CFR Part 225 
(OMB CIRCULAR A–87).  
 

8. PUBLIC RECORDS 

The Grantee, an agency as defined in section 119.011(2), F.S., must comply with the requirements of Chapter 
119, F.S., in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. The Grantee must also ensure that any 
contractors and subcontractors that perform work pursuant to this Agreement comply with the requirements 
of Chapter 119, F.S., as applicable. 

9. LIABILITY 
9.1. The Grantee is solely responsible to parties it deals with in carrying out the terms of this Agreement 

and, subject to the limitation of section 768.28, F.S., the Grantee shall hold the Department harmless 
against all claims of whatever nature by third parties arising from performance under this Agreement. 

139

A.

http://dos.myflorida.com/library-archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/
http://csrc.nist.gov/


5 
 

9.2. The Grantee, a subdivision as defined in section 768.28, F.S., agrees to be fully responsible for its 
negligent or tortious acts or omissions which result in claims or suits against the Department and agrees 
to be liable for any damages proximately caused by the acts or omissions to the extent set forth in 
section 768.28, F.S.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity 
by the Grantee.  Nothing in this Agreement may be construed as consent by a State agency or 
subdivision of the State to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of any contract. 

 
10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 
If any of the following events occur ("Events of Default"), all obligations on the part of the E911 Board  to make 
any further payment of funds shall, if the Department elects, terminate and the Department has the option to 
exercise any of its remedies set forth herein.  However, the Department may make payments or partial 
payments after any Events of Default without waiving the right to exercise such remedies and without becoming 
liable to make any further payment. The Events of Default are: 

10.1. If any warranty or representation made by the Grantee in this Agreement or any previous agreement 
with the Department is or becomes false or misleading in any respect; 

10.2. If the Grantee fails to keep or timely perform any of the obligations, terms, or covenants in this 
Agreement or any previous agreement with the Department and has not cured them in timely 
fashion; 

10.3. If the Grantee or is unable or unwilling to meet its obligations under this Agreement; 
10.4. If material adverse changes occur in the financial condition of the Grantee at any time during the 

term of this Agreement; or 
10.5. If any reports required by this Agreement have not been submitted to the Department or have been 

submitted with incorrect, incomplete, or insufficient information. 
 
11. REMEDIES 
If an Event of Default occurs, then the Department shall provide a written notice to the Grantee, and, upon the 
Grantee's failure to cure the default within the thirty (30) calendar days, the Department may exercise any one 
(1) or more of the following remedies, either concurrently or consecutively: 

11.1. terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12, Termination, below; 
11.2. withhold or suspend payment of all or any part of a request for payment; 
11.3. exercise any corrective or remedial actions, including but not limited to: 

11.3.1. request additional information from the Grantee to determine the reasons for or the extent 
of non-compliance or lack of performance; 

11.3.2. issue a written warning to advise that more serious measures may be taken if the situation is 
not corrected; or 

11.3.3. advise the Grantee to suspend, discontinue, or refrain from incurring costs for any activities 
in question. 

 
Pursuing any of the above remedies will not preclude the Department from pursuing any other remedies 
available under this Agreement or at law or in equity.  If the Department waives any right or remedy in this 
Agreement or fails to insist on strict performance by the Grantee, it does not affect, extend, or waive any other 
right or remedy of the Department, or affect the later exercise of the same right or remedy by the Department 
for any other default by the Grantee. 
 

140

A.



6 
 

12. TERMINATION 
12.1. Termination Due to the Lack of Funds.  If funds become unavailable for the Agreement’s purpose, 

such event will not constitute a default by the Department or the State.  The Department agrees to 
notify the Grantee in writing at the earliest possible time if funds are no longer available.  In the 
event that any funding identified by the Grantee as funds to be provided for completion of the 
project as described herein becomes unavailable, including if any State funds upon which this 
Agreement depends are withdrawn or redirected, the Department may terminate this Agreement 
by providing written notice to the Grantee.  The Department will be the final authority as to the 
availability of funds.   

12.2. Termination for Cause.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for cause after ten (10) days 
of a written notice, which will be issued after the 30-day cure period ends.  Cause includes, but is not 
limited to, misuse of funds, fraud, lack of compliance with applicable rules, laws, and regulations, 
failure to perform on time, or refusal to permit public access to any document, paper, letter, or other 
material subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., unless exempt from Section 24(a) of Article I 
of the State Constitution and section 119.07(1), F.S., or applicable state or federal law, which the 
Grantee created or received under this Agreement. 

12.3. Termination for Convenience.  The Department may terminate this Agreement for convenience or 
when it determines, in its sole discretion, that continuing the Agreement would not produce 
beneficial results in line with the further expenditure of funds by providing the Grantee with thirty 
(30) calendar days’ prior written notice. 

12.4. Mutual Termination.  The parties may agree to terminate this Agreement for their mutual 
convenience through a written amendment of this Agreement.  The amendment will state the 
effective date of the termination and the procedures for proper closeout of the Agreement. 

12.5. Grantee Responsibilities upon Termination.  Upon notice of termination, the Grantee shall: 
12.5.1. not incur new obligations for the terminated portion of the Agreement; and 
12.5.2. cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible.  Costs incurred after receipt of the 

termination notice are disallowed.  The Grantee shall not be relieved of liability to the 
Department because of any breach of this Agreement by the Grantee.  The Department may, 
to the extent authorized by law, withhold payments to the Grantee for the purpose of set-off 
until the exact amount of damages due to the Department from the Grantee is determined. 

 
13. RESULTING THIRD PARTY CONTRACTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 
13.1 The Grantee may contract with third parties to perform work.  The Grantee remains fully responsible for 

satisfactory completion of any and all work performed by any contractors and subcontractors.  
13.2 With the Grantee’s approval, the Grantee’s contractor may subcontract work performed, and the 

Grantee’s contractor will be fully responsible for satisfactory completion of all subcontracted work. 
13.3 The Grantee agrees all Grantee contracts or subcontracts entered into pursuant to this Agreement for 

which the State Legislature is in any part a funding source shall contain language requiring the 
contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) who are paid from funds provided under this Agreement (i) be bound 
by the terms of this Agreement; (ii) be bound by all applicable state and federal laws and regulations; 
and (iii) hold the Department and Grantee harmless against all claims of whatever nature arising out of 
the performance of work under this Agreement to the extent allowed and required by law. 

 
14. MANDATED CONDITIONS 
14.1. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and venue for any actions arising 

out of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Leon County.   

141

A.



7 
 

14.2. If any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any applicable statute or rule or is unenforceable, 
then the provision shall be null and void to the extent of the conflict and shall be severable but shall not 
invalidate any other provision of this Agreement. 

14.3. In accordance with Executive Order 11-116, the Grantee is required to utilize the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired 
during the term of the Agreement for the services specified in the Agreement.  The Grantee must also 
include a requirement in contracts that the contractor must utilize the E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the Agreement term.  If 
the Grantee is not enrolled in DHS E-Verify System, it will do so within five (5) days of notice of the 
Agreement execution. The link to E-Verify is http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify.  

14.4. In accordance with section 11.062 and 216.345, F.S., funds received under this Agreement are not to be 
used for the purpose of lobbying or used to directly or indirectly influence legislation or any other official 
action by the Florida Legislature, the judicial brand, or any state agency. 

 
15. MISCELLANEOUS  

15.1. Payment Process.  Subject to the terms and conditions established in this Agreement and the billing 
procedures established by the Department, the Department agrees to pay the Grantee in accordance 
with section 215.422, F.S.  The applicable interest rate can be obtained at:  
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm.   

15.2. Invoicing. The Grantee shall submit all claims for reimbursement and for progress payments, as 
described in the Application, using Appendix IV, Financial Reimbursement of Expenditures Reporting 
Form, to the Application.  The Grantee may submit claims to the Board as needed; however, the Grantee 
shall not submit more than one claim per month. After receipt of the reimbursement claim, and in 
accordance with the payment provisions established in this Agreement, the Department shall disburse 
the amount of funds approved by the Board.   

15.3. Invoice Detail.  Invoices submitted by the Grantee must fulfill all requirements specified in the scope of 
work and include all supporting documentation, when applicable.  The Grantee shall also submit 
invoices in sufficient detail to fulfill all applicable requirements of the State of Florida Reference Guide 
for State Expenditures.   

15.4. Intellectual Property.  Where activities supported by this Agreement result in the creation of intellectual 
property rights, the Grantee shall notify the Department, and the Department will determine whether 
the Grantee will be required to grant the Department a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, 
nonexclusive license to use, and to authorize others to use for State government purposes, any resulting 
patented, copyrighted, or trademarked work products developed under this Agreement. The 
Department will also determine whether the Grantee will be required to pay all or a portion of any 
royalties resulting from such patents, copyrights, or trademarks.  

15.5. Conflict of Interest.  This Agreement is subject to Chapter 112, F.S.  The Grantee shall disclose the name 
of any officer, director, employee, or other agent who is also an employee of the State.  The Grantee 
shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, more than a five 
percent (5%) interest in the Grantee or its affiliates. 

15.6. Non-Discrimination.  The Grantee shall not unlawfully discriminate against any individual employed in 
the performance of this Agreement due to race, religion, color, sex, physical handicap unrelated to such 
person’s ability to engage in this work, national origin, ancestry, or age.  The Grantee shall provide a 
harassment-free workplace, and any allegation of harassment shall be given priority attention and 
action. 

142

A.

http://www.uscis.gov/e-verify
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/default.htm


8 
 

15.7. Electronic Funds Transfer Enrollment. The Grantee agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), 
offered by the State’s Chief Financial Officer, within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party signed this 
Agreement. Copies of the authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found at: 
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/.  Questions should be directed to the EFT Section 
at (850) 413-5517.  Once enrolled, invoice payments will be made by EFT. 

15.8. Survival.  Any right or obligation of the parties in this Agreement which, by its express terms or nature 
and context, is intended to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement, will survive any such 
termination or expiration.  

15.9. Notices.  All notices from both parties, outside of the notice of award and notices related to the business 
of the E911 Board, shall be effective when placed in the United States, first class mail, postage prepaid, 
by registered or certified mail-return receipt requested, to the address in section 3 herein. 

  
 

I hereby affirm my authority and responsibility for the use of funds requested.  
 
Grantee 
 
___________________________________________________________               Date: _____________                                           
Signature - Chair, Board of County Commissioners or County Manager 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Department of Management Services                                                                             Date: ______________ 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 

 

APPLICABLE STATUTES AND REGULATIONS 
The Grantee and the Department shall be governed by all applicable State and federal laws, rules, and 
regulations, including those identified in this table.   
 
General Requirements 

Florida Statutes (F.S.) 
§ 11.062, F.S. - Use of state funds for lobbying prohibited; penalty 
§ 20.055, F.S. - Agency inspectors general 
Chapter 112, F.S. - Public Officers and Employees: General Provisions 
Chapter 119, F.S. - Public Records 
§ 215.34, F.S. - State funds; noncollectible items; procedure 
§ 215.422, F.S. - Payments, warrants, and invoices; processing time limits; dispute resolution; agency or 
judicial branch compliance 

143

A.

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Vendors/


9 
 

§ 215.97, F.S. - Florida Single Audit Act 
§ 215.971, F.S. - Agreements funded with federal or state assistance 
§ 216.301, F.S. - Appropriations; undisbursed balances 
§ 216.347, F.S. - Disbursement of grants and aids appropriations for lobbying prohibited 
§ 216.3475, F.S. - Maximum rate of payment for services funded under General Appropriations Act or 
awarded on a noncompetitive basis 
§ 216.181(16), F.S.- Approved budgets for operations and fixed capital outlay 
§ 273.02, F.S. - Record and inventory of certain property 
§ 287.133, F.S. - Public entity crime; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public 
entities 
§ 287.134, F.S. - Discrimination; denial or revocation of the right to transact business with public entities 
§ 287.135, F.S. - Prohibition against contracting with scrutinized companies 
Chapter 443, F.S. - Reemployment Assistance 
§ 501.171, F.S. - Security of confidential personal information 

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) 
Rule Chapter 69I-5 - State Financial Assistance 

Memoranda 
CFO Memorandum No. 02 (2012-13) - Contract and Grant Reviews and Related Payment Processing 
Requirements 
CFO Memorandum No. 20 (2019-20) - Compliance Requirements for Agreements 

State E911 Plan and E911 Board Statutes and Rules 

Florida Statutes 
Chapter 365, F.S. - Use of Telephones and Facsimile Machines 

Florida Administrative Code 
Rule Chapter 60FF-6 - State E911 Plan 
Rule Chapter 60FF1-5 - E911 Board 

 

 

Catalog of State Financial 
Assistance number: 

72.001  
 

Catalog of State Financial 
Assistance title: Wireless 911 Emergency Telephone 
System Rural County Grant Program 

 

 

State Grant Number: 20-04-06                   State Grant Award Date: 4/16/2020  
 

144

A.



Attachment 1 
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

FOR AWARDS OF STATE AND FEDERAL 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

 

The administration of resources awarded by the Department of Management Services 
(Department) to the Grantee may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Department, as 
described in this section.  

MONITORING 

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit 
Requirements, and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below), 
monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by Department staff, limited 
scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures.  By entering into this 
agreement, the Grantee agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures or 
processes deemed appropriate by the Department.  In the event the Department determines that 
a limited scope audit of the Grantee is appropriate, the Grantee agrees to comply with any 
additional instructions provided by Department staff to the Grantee regarding such audit.  The 
Grantee further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or 
audits deemed necessary by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General. 

AUDITS 

Part I:  Federally Funded 
This part is applicable if the Grantee is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as 
defined in 2 CFR §200.90, §200.64, and §200.70. 

1. A grantee that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a 
single or program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, 
Subpart F - Audit Requirements.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the federal resources awarded 
through the Department by this agreement.  In determining the federal awards expended in 
its fiscal year, the Grantee shall consider all sources of federal awards, including federal 
resources received from the Department.  The determination of amounts of federal awards 
expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established in 2 CFR §§200.502-
503.  An audit of the Grantee conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the 
provisions of 2 CFR §200.514 will meet the requirements of this Part. 

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall fulfill the 
requirements relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR §§200.508-512. 

3. A grantee that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required 
to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - 
Audit Requirements.  If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its 
fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 
CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-
federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from Grantee resources 
obtained from other than federal entities). 

Part II:  State Funded 
In the event that the Grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to 
or in excess of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such Grantee (for fiscal years ending June 30, 
2017, or thereafter), the Grantee must have a state single or project-specific audit for such 
fiscal year in accordance with section 215.97, F.S.; applicable rules of the Department of 
Financial Services; and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit 

145

A.



DFS-A2-CL Page -3- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.  EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the 
state financial assistance awarded through the Department by this agreement.  In 
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the Grantee shall 
consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance 
received from the Department, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities.  State 
financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources 
received by a nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements. 

1. For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the Grantee shall ensure that 
the audit complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8), F.S.  This includes 
submission of a financial reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S., and 
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit 
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. 

2. If the Grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, or thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of section 215.97, F.S., is not required.  If the Grantee expends less than 
$750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of section 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid 
from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from the 
Grantee’s resources obtained from other than state entities). 

Part III:  Other Audit Requirements 
N/A 
Part IV:  Report Submission 

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart 
F - Audit Requirements, and required by Part I of this form shall be submitted, when required 
by 2 CFR §200.512, by or on behalf of the Grantee directly to the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR §200.36 and §200.512. 

  The FAC’s website provides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the 
single audit reporting package.  Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system 
may be found at the OMB website. 

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by Part II of this form shall be submitted by 
or on behalf of the Grantee directly to each of the following: 

a. The Department at each of the following addresses: 

Electronic copies (preferred):   oiginvestigation@dms.myflorida.com   
 
or 
 
Paper (hard copy):   
The Department of Management Services 
Office of the Inspector General 
4030 Esplanade Way, Ste 250 
Tallahassee, FL  32399-0950 
 
 

b. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address: 

  Auditor General 
  Local Government Audits/342 
  Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 

146

A.



DFS-A2-CL Page -3- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

  111 West Madison Street 
  Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 

  The Auditor General’s website (https://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an 
electronic copy of a financial reporting package. 

3. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the 
Department pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 
§200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 
10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable. 

4. Grantees, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department for audits done 
in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local 
governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the 
Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was delivered to the 
Grantee in correspondence accompanying the reporting package. 

Part V:  Record Retention 
The Grantee shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the 
award(s) and this agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued, 
and shall allow the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General access to such 
records upon request.  The Grantee shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to 
the Department, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon request for a period of five (5) 
years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department. 

 

147

A.

https://flauditor.gov/


DFS-A2-CL Page -4- 
Rev. 11/18 
Rule 69I-5.006, F.A.C. 

EXHIBIT 1 

Federal Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 

1. Federal Program A: 

Federal/State Project:  
Federal/State Awarding Agency: State of Florida, Department of Management Services 
Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title and Number: 72.001 Wireless 911 Emergency Telephone 
System Rural County Grant Program 
Amount: $34,366.21 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to the Federal Resources 
  Awarded Pursuant to this Agreement are as Follows: 

1. Federal Program A: 

N/A 

2. Federal Program B: 

N/A 

State Resources Awarded to the Grantee 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following: 
Matching Resources for Federal Programs: 

1. Federal Program A: 

  N/A 

2. Federal Program B: 

  N/A 

Subject to Section 215.97, F.S.: 
1. State Project A: 

N/A 
 

2. State Project B: 

  N/A 

Compliance Requirements Applicable to State Resources Awarded 
  Pursuant to this Agreement Are as Follows: 
The compliance requirements are as stated in Grant Agreement #20-04-06 between the Grantee 
and the Department, entered in State Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 

148

A.



 

 

 

Administrative Policy 

Policy 

Number 

94 

Title: Local Workforce Development Area Designation 

Program: Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

Adopted: March 20, 2017 

Effective: March 20, 2017 

 

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

 

The purpose of this policy is to outline the process for new and subsequent area designation 

for local workforce development boards (LWDBs) under the Workforce Innovation and 

Opportunity Act (WIOA).   

 

II. BACKGROUND  

 

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Pub. L. 113-128), the Governor must 

designate local workforce development areas after consultation with the State Workforce 

Board (SWB), local chief elected officials (CEO) and LWDBs.   

 

WIOA requires that the Governor approve a request for initial designation as a local workforce 

development area from any area that was designated as a local workforce development area 

for purposes of the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998 for the two-year period 

preceding the enactment of WIOA, provided the area performed successfully and sustained 

fiscal integrity.  

 

III. AUTHORITY 

 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Pub. L. 113-128, Section 106, 107 and 116) 
 

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL No. 19-14), Vision for the Workforce 

System and Initial Implementation of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, February 

19, 2015 

 

149

A.

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=7353


DESIGNATION OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA UNDER WIOA   

Page 2 of 6 

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 27-14, Workforce Innovation and 

Opportunity Act Transition Authority for Immediate Implementation of Governance 

Provisions, April 15, 2015 
 

Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) No. 10-16, Performance Accountability 

Guidance for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I, Title II, Title III and 

Title IV Core Programs, December 19, 2016 

 

20 CFR 679.230-679.260; 20 CFR 683.630(a); 20 CFR 683.640; 20 CFR 677.205-677.210 

 

IV. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 

The purpose of the local workforce development area is to serve as the jurisdiction for the 

administration of workforce development activities using Adult, Dislocated Worker and Youth 

funds allocated by the State and to coordinate efforts related to the other core programs at a 

community level. The Governor shall approve a request for designation of an area from a unit 

of general local government as a local workforce development area in accordance with the 

process and considerations outlined in WIOA Section 106b(1)(A) and (B). 

 

Under the authority granted to states in WIOA Section 106(b)(2), each of Florida’s existing 

local workforce investment areas that were operating in accordance with WIA were 

automatically granted an initial designation as a local workforce development area. This initial 

designation became effective July 1, 2015 and will expire on June 30, 2017. 

 

1. New Area Designation 

 

The Governor may approve a request at any time for designation as a local workforce 

development area from any unit of general local government, including a combination of such 

units, if the SWB recommends designation after determining that the area: 

 

a. Is consistent with local labor market areas; 

b. Has a common economic development area; and 

c. Has the Federal and non-Federal resources, including appropriate education and 

training institutions, to administer activities under WIOA subtitle B.  

 

If local representatives have concluded that a new local workforce development area is needed, 

the CEOs shall make a request to the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) and 

CareerSource Florida. The new designation request requires the following steps: 

 

a. A completed request that addresses the required designation criteria as described in 

WIOA Section 106: 

 

i. Consistency with local labor market areas.  

ii. Has a common economic development area.  

150

A.

https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=7158
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=8226


DESIGNATION OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA UNDER WIOA   

Page 3 of 6 

iii. Has the federal and non-federal resources, including appropriate education and 

training institutions, to administer activities under the Youth, Adult and 

Dislocated Worker formula programs.  

 

b. The request must contain the signature of all of the CEOs of the units of local 

government that will make up the new local workforce development area, to 

demonstrate that the request is the consensus of all the units of local government 

involved. 

 

c. A statement of how the proposed new area designation will impact those other 

workforce areas from which it is withdrawing. It should be understood by any county, 

city or combination of such seeking designation, that the new area will only secure the 

formula allocated funds for each WIOA funding stream based on the formula factors 

as defined by WIOA. 

 

d. CareerSource Florida will review all public comments received and include those 

comments in the recommendation packet for approval or disapproval of local 

workforce development area designations to the Governor. 

 

e. CareerSource Florida will submit its recommendation to the Governor within ten 

business days of CareerSource Florida decision. 

 

f. The final decision rests with the Governor (or designee) and shall be made no later than 

six weeks prior to the beginning of the new program year (July 1st). 

 

Additionally, the Governor may re-designate a local workforce development area if the re-

designation has been requested by a local workforce development area and the Governor 

approves the request. 

 

2. Subsequent Designation  

 

Local workforce development areas that receive an initial designation shall be granted a 

subsequent designation if, for the two most recent program years, the local workforce 

development area performed successfully and sustained fiscal integrity, and in the case of 

a local workforce development area in a planning region, met the regional planning 

requirements as described in WIOA Sec. 106(c)(1). The process for a local area to submit 

a subsequent designation request is outlined below: 

 

a. The CEOs must submit a request for subsequent designation (Attachment A) to 

CareerSource Florida and DEO every two years beginning July 1, 2017. The completed 

form must be submitted via email to: WIOA@deo.myflorida.com. The application to 

request subsequent designation is due by April 15 of the renewal year. 

 

b. DEO and CareerSource Florida will review the request submitted to verify that the 

stated requirements were met. The submissions will be made available for public 

review at www.careersourceflorida.com/wioa for a period not to exceed ten days. 

151

A.

mailto:WIOA@deo.myflorida.com
http://www.careersourceflorida.com/wioa


DESIGNATION OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA UNDER WIOA   

Page 4 of 6 

 

c. After the receipt and review of public comment, CareerSource Florida will review the 

submissions along with any public comments received, and make recommendations to 

the Governor regarding the local workforce development area’s subsequent 

designation. 

 

d. Each local workforce development area will be notified of the Governor’s designation 

decision within ten business days of receipt by DEO and CareerSource Florida.  

 

The Governor may review a local workforce development area at any time to evaluate 

whether that area continues to meet the requirements for subsequent designation. 

Additionally, the Governor must review a local workforce development area before 

submitting the State Plan during each four-year State planning cycle to evaluate whether 

the area continues to meet the requirements for subsequent designation. 

 

3. Performed Successfully 

 

For the purpose of determining subsequent local workforce development area designation, 

the term ‘‘performed successfully” means the local workforce development area met or 

exceeded the adjusted levels of performance for primary indicators of performance for the 

last two consecutive years for which data are available, and that the local area has not failed 

the same measure for the last two consecutive program years.  

 

4. Sustained Fiscal Integrity  
 

Sustained Fiscal Integrity for all program years means the Secretary of the United States 

Department of Labor has not made a formal determination that either the grant recipient or 

the administrative entity of the area misexpended funds due to willful disregard of the 

requirements of the provision involved, gross negligence or failure to comply with accepted 

standards of administration for the two-year period preceding the determination. 

 

V. APPEAL PROCEDURES FOR DENIAL OR OTHER ADVERSE ACTION(S) 

PERTAINING TO LOCAL WIOA AREA DESIGNATION 

 

If the Governor denies a local area designation or makes a decision related to designation that 

adversely affects an area, the unit of general local government or grant recipient may submit 

an appeal to CareerSource Florida. The appeal procedures are as follows:  

 

1. State Appeal Procedures 

 

a. The request for appeal must be sent by certified mail, return receipt to the President, 

CareerSource Florida, Inc. c/o the Department of Economic Opportunity, Attention: 

OSPS Program Management Unit, MSG-229, 107 East Madison Street, Tallahassee, 

FL 32399 and/or email the request for appeal to WIOA@deo.myflorida.com. The 

request must include the name of the contact person and the address where official 

notices are to be mailed. The appeal request must be legible, written/typed clearly and 

152

A.

mailto:WIOA@deo.myflorida.com


DESIGNATION OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA UNDER WIOA   

Page 5 of 6 

concisely, and include the title “REQUEST FOR APPEAL” at the top of the first 

page in all capital letters.  The written/typed appeal must specifically state why the 

designation as a WIOA local workforce development area should be approved.  The 

request shall be no longer than five pages.  (Exhibits and attachments are not included 

in the five-page limit.)  

 

b. As specified in WIOA Regulations, 20 CFR 683.630(a)(2), CareerSource Florida must 

provide an opportunity for a hearing and prescribe appropriate time limits to ensure 

prompt resolution of the appeal.  CareerSource Florida must conduct a hearing and 

make a determination of designation within 60 calendar days of receipt of the request.  

At least ten calendar days prior to the hearing, the designated local contact person shall 

receive by certified mail, return receipt, a written/typed notice of the hearing from 

CareerSource Florida.   

 

c. The notice shall inform the local contact/board of the following: 

 

i. The date, time, and place of the hearing; 

ii. The reason the WIOA local workforce development area designation was 

denied, including the pertinent sections of the WIOA and any  federal 

regulations involved; 

iii. That the affected parties that they may present witnesses or documentary 

evidence at the hearing; 

iv. That the affected parties that they may be represented at the hearing by an 

attorney or other representative; 

v. That the parties are entitled to a written/typed decision of findings to be issued 

within 30 calendar days after the date of the hearing; and 

vi. That the local area has the right to appeal to the Secretary of the United States 

Department of Labor (USDOL). 

 

2. Federal Appeal Procedures 

 

a. If the appeal does not result in a designation, the appellant may request a review by the 

Secretary of USDOL to determine if procedural rights were granted or if the minimum 

criteria of WIOA Section 106(b)(2) or Section 106(b)(3) were met. This appeal must 

be filed no later than 30 days after receipt of written notification of the denial from 

CareerSource Florida, and must be submitted by certified mail, return receipt requested 

to: Secretary, U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, 

DC 20210, Attention: ASET. A copy of the appeal must be provided to CareerSource 

Florida at the same time it is sent to USDOL.  

 

b. The appellant must establish that it was not accorded procedural rights under the appeal 

process set forth in the State Plan or that it meets the requirements for designation as 

specified in WIOA. 

 

153

A.



DESIGNATION OF LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA UNDER WIOA   

Page 6 of 6 

c. The USDOL Secretary may consider any comments submitted in response by 

CareerSource Florida. If the USDOL Secretary determines that the appellant has met 

its burden of establishing that it was not accorded procedural rights under the appeal 

process or that it met the requirements for designation in WIOA, the Secretary may 

require that the area be designated a local area. The Secretary must issue a written 

decision to the Governor and the appellant. 

 

VI. DEFINITIONS 

 

Initial Designation – The period of initial designation applies to July 1, 2015 through June 

30, 2017. 

 

Subsequent Designation – The period of subsequent designation applies to program years 

2017 and beyond. 

 

New Designation – Creation of a new local area. 

 

VII. ATTACHMENT 

 

Attachment A – Application for Subsequent Local Workforce Development Area Designation 

154

A.

http://sitefinity.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/office-of-workforce-services/appsubsequentlwdareadesignatn.pdf?sfvrsn=2


   
 

   
 

Administrative Policy 

POLICY 

NUMBER  

091  

Title:  Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Program:  Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act  

Effective:  06/08/2016 Revised: 01/07/2021 

 

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of this policy is to provide Local Workforce Development Boards (LWDBs) 

with the requirements for LWDB membership composition under the Workforce 

Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) and Chapter 445, Florida Statutes (F.S.), and the 

process for certification of LWDBs. 

 

II. BACKGROUND 

Each local workforce development area in the state must establish a local workforce 

development board to carry out the functions specified for the local board under WIOA 

sec. 107(d) for such area. The CareerSource Florida Board of Directors, in consultation 

with the Department of Economic Opportunity, will ensure LWDBs have a membership 

consistent with the requirements of federal and state law and have developed a plan 

consistent with the state’s workforce development plan. 

 

III. AUTHORITY 

Public Law 113-128, Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, Sections 106 and 107 

20 Code of Federal Regulations 679.320 

Sections 445.004 and 445.007, F.S. 

 

 

 

155

A.

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/PLAW-113publ128/pdf/PLAW-113publ128.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2019-title20-vol4/CFR-2019-title20-vol4-sec679-320
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2019-title20-vol4/CFR-2019-title20-vol4-sec679-320
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0400-0499/0445/0445.html


Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 2 of 7 
 

   
 

IV. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Outlined below are the policies and procedures for certifying LWDBs and ensuring the 

composition of and appointment of members to LWDBs are consistent with the 

provisions of federal and state requirements.  

A. LWDB Membership and Composition 

The Governor, in partnership with the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors, must 

establish criteria for use by Chief Local Elected Officials (CLEOs) for appointment of 

members of the local boards in accordance with WIOA sec. 107(b)(2). The composition 

of the local board must meet the following criteria: 

1. Business 

A majority of the local board members must represent businesses in the local area 

as individuals who: 

a. Are owners of a business, chief executives or operating officers of businesses, 

or other business executives or employers with optimum policymaking or 

hiring authority; 

b. Represent businesses, including small businesses, or organizations 

representing businesses that provide employment opportunities that, at a 

minimum, include high-quality, work-relevant training and development in 

in-demand industry sectors or occupations in the local area (at least two 

representatives of small businesses must be included); and 

c. Are appointed from individuals nominated by local business organizations 

and business trade associations. 

 

2. Labor/Apprenticeships 

Not less than 20 percent of the members must be representatives of the workforce 

within the local area who: 

a. Include at least two representatives of labor organizations nominated by local 

labor federations. For a local area in which no employees are represented by 

such organizations, at least two other representatives of employees will be 

included. 

b. Include at least one representative of a labor organization or a training 

director from a joint labor-management apprenticeship program. If no such 

joint program exists in the area, at least one representative of an 

apprenticeship program in the area, if such a program exists. 

c. May include representatives of community-based organizations that have 

demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment needs 

of individuals with barriers to employment, including organizations that 

serve veterans or provide/support competitive integrated employment for 

156

A.



Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 3 of 7 
 

   
 

individuals with disabilities. 

d. May include representatives of organizations that have demonstrated 

experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or 

education needs of eligible youth, including representatives or organizations 

that serve out-of-school youth. 

 

3. Education 

Each local board must include representatives of entities administering education 

and training activities in the local area who: 

a. Include a representative of eligible providers administering adult education 

and literacy activities under Title II of WIOA. 

b. Include a representative of institutions of higher education providing 

workforce investment activities (including community colleges). 

c. Include a private education provider, if a public education or training 

provider is represented on the LWDB. The CareerSource Florida Board of 

Directors may waive this requirement if requested by a LWDB if it is 

demonstrated that such representative does not exist in the local area. 

d. May include representatives of local educational agencies and of community-

based organizations with demonstrated experience and expertise in 

addressing the education or training needs of individuals with barriers to 

employment. 

When there is more than one institution in each of the types of educational entities 

listed above, nominations are solicited from representatives of each of these 

entities. 

 

LWDBs requesting to waive the requirement for private education provider 

representation on the board must demonstrate that such a provider does not exist 

in the local area. The LWDB will describe, in a locally defined process, how 

private education providers will be identified and efforts to include those 

representatives on the local board. If through the local process the LWDB finds 

that a private education provider representative of an entity administering 

education and training activities in the local area does not exist, the LWDB will 

submit a request to waive the requirement to 

 LWDBGovernance@deo.myflorida.com. The request must include a copy of the 

local process and the results of the LWDB’s efforts in its request. 

 

4. Governmental/Economic/Community Development  

Each local board must include representatives of economic and community 

development as well as governmental entities serving the local area who: 

a. Represent economic and community development entities serving the local 

area.  

b. Represent Vocational Rehabilitation serving the local area. 

157

A.

mailto:LWDBGovernance@deo.myflorida.com


Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 4 of 7 
 

   
 

c. May represent agencies or entities serving the local area relating to 

transportation, housing, and public assistance. 

d. May represent philanthropic organizations serving the local area. 

 

5. Other Entity Representation 

 

Each local board may include other individuals or representatives of entities 

determined by the Chief Elected Official in the local areas to be appropriate. 

 

Unlike the state board, members of the local board may be appointed as 

representatives of more than one entity if the individual meets all the criteria for 

representation. 

B. LWDB Chairperson 

 

The members of the local board must elect a chairperson for the local board from 

among the members of the local board.  The Chairperson of the LWDB must be from 

the business community and serve for a term of no more than two years and no more 

than two terms. 

  

C. Standing Committees 

 

The local board may designate and direct the activities of standing committees to 

provide information and to assist the local board in carrying out its required activities, 

as further prescribed in WIOA sec. 107(b)(4). 

 

D. Authority of Board Members 

Members of the board who represent organizations, agencies, or other entities must be 

individuals with optimum policymaking authority within the organizations, agencies or 

entities.   

E. Board Member Recruiting, Vetting and Nominating 

The LWDB, in consultation with the CLEO, must develop and implement written 

processes and procedures for recruiting, vetting and nominating LWDB members.  

The qualifications of LWDB members must be documented, align with the 

requirements of WIOA, and be compliant with all federal and state laws, rules and 

regulations, and applicable state policies.  Documentation supporting the 

recruitment, vetting and nomination process, including names of nominating 

organizations and names of all candidates and their qualifications, must be retained 

for not less than five years.  

In addition to criteria outlined in Section A. of this policy, the members of the board 

shall represent diverse geographic areas within the local area. The importance of 

minority and gender representation must be considered when making appointments 

to the local board. 

158

A.



Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 5 of 7 
 

   
 

F. Appointment of Board Members 

 

The CLEO in a local area is authorized to appoint the members of the local board 

who meet the criteria outlined in Section A. of this policy. The CLEO may not 

delegate the responsibility of appointing members to the LWDB, to the executive 

director or to staff. When a local area includes more than one unit of local 

government, the CLEOs of such units may execute an agreement that specifies the 

respective roles of the individual CLEOs regarding: 

 

a. The selection, appointment, removal or reappointment of the members of the 

local board from the individuals nominated or recommended to be such 

members; and 

b. Carrying out any other responsibilities assigned to such officials in accordance 

with WIOA. 

If after a reasonable effort the CLEOs are unable to reach agreement, the Governor 

may appoint the members of the local board from individuals so nominated or 

recommended. 

Upon appointment to the local board, members must be educated about and 

acknowledge state and local conflict-of-interest policies.  

LWDBs must adopt and abide by a conflict-of-interest policy that ensures 

compliance with federal and state laws, rules and regulations and applicable state 

policies. 

 

G. Board Member Vacancies and Removal of a Board Member 

 

LWDB members who no longer hold the position or status that made them eligible 

appointees must resign or be removed by the CLEO. Local workforce development 

board vacancies must be filled within a reasonable amount of time, but no more than 

12 months from the vacancy occurrence. This process may be described in the local 

area’s bylaws or in a local operating procedure. 

The Governor1 and CLEO2 may remove members of an LWDB, and its Executive 

Director or the designated person responsible for operational and administrative 

functions for the board for cause.  

 

H. Certification of Local Workforce Development Boards 

1. Certification 

Once every two years, one LWDB must be certified for each local area in the 

state, based on the criteria described in WIOA sec. 107(b). For a second or 

subsequent certification, certification must also be based on the extent to which 

                                                           
1 Chapter 445.007(2)(b), F.S. 
2 Chapter 445.007(2)(c), F.S. 

159

A.

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.007.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0400-0499/0445/Sections/0445.007.html


Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 6 of 7 
 

   
 

the local area ensures workforce investment activities carried out in the local area 

enabled the local area to meet the corresponding performance accountability 

measures and achieve fiscal integrity as defined in WIOA sec. 106(e)(2). 

 

The CareerSource Florida Board of Directors shall recertify LWDBs every two 

years. DEO, in consultation with the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors, 

will issue instructions to the LWDBs for certification. LWDBs will submit 

certification documents to DEO. Upon satisfactory review of an LWDB’s 

certification documents, DEO will provide a recommendation on certification to 

the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors. At the appropriate time intervals, 

instructions will be issued to LWDBs about the certification process, to include 

documentation requirements.  

 

2. Failure to Achieve Certification 

Failure of an LWDB to achieve certification shall result in appointment and 

certification of a new local board for the local area pursuant to WIOA sec. 

107(c)(1). Administrative Policy 104 – Sanctions for Local Workforce 

Development Boards' Failure to Meet Federal and State Standards details the 

actions the CareerSource Florida Board of Directors and DEO may take if an 

LWDB fails to meet this standard. 

I. Decertification of Local Workforce Development Boards 

The Governor may decertify an LWDB in accordance with WIOA Sec. 107(c)(3), as 

further prescribed in Administrative Policy 104, Sanctions for Local Workforce 

Development Boards’ Failure to Meet Federal and State Standards.   

V. DEFINITIONS 

1. Small business is defined by the Small Business Administration. 

 

2. Economic agency is defined as including a local planning or zoning commission or 

board, a community development agency, or another local agency or institution 

responsible for regulating, promoting, or assisting in local economic development. 

 

3. Cause includes, but is not limited to, engaging in fraud or other criminal acts, 

incapacity, unfitness, neglect of duty, official incompetence and irresponsibility, 

misfeasance, malfeasance, nonfeasance, or lack of performance.   

 

4. Person with optimum policy-making authority is an individual who can reasonably 

be expected to speak affirmatively on behalf of the entity he or she represents and to 

commit that entity to a chosen course of action. 

 

 

 

 

160

A.

http://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2020-guidance-papers/adminpolicy104_-sanctionslwdbsfailmeetfed-statestds---final.pdf?sfvrsn=858143b0_2
http://www.floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/lwdb-resources/policy-and-guidance/guidance-papers/2020-guidance-papers/adminpolicy104_-sanctionslwdbsfailmeetfed-statestds---final.pdf?sfvrsn=858143b0_2
https://www.sba.gov/contracting/getting-started-contractor/make-sure-you-meet-sba-size-standards


Local Workforce Development Board Composition and Certification 

Policy Number 091 

Page 7 of 7 
 

   
 

 

VI. REVISION HISTORY 

 

Date Description 

01/07/2021 Issued by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 

12/03/2020 Revised and approved by CareerSource Florida Board of Directors. 

02/20/2020 Revised and approved by CareerSource Florida Board of Directors. 

06/08/2016 Issued by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. This 

administrative policy supersedes and replaces FG-OSPS-073, 

Regional Workforce Board Composition, Certification and 

Decertification, issued June 29, 2013. 

 

 

161

A.



162

A.



163

A.



164

A.



165

A.



166

A.



167

A.



 

  RICKY D. JONES      BERT B. BOLDT II       NOAH LOCKLEY, JR.       JOSEPH PARRISH            JESSICA WARD  
    DISTRICT ONE               DISTRICT TWO                  DISTRICT THREE                 DISTRICT FOUR                DISTRICT FIVE 

 

 

 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 

 
 
 

January 25, 2021 
 
Wesley Sapp 
Florida Division of Emergency Management 
2555 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 
 
Dear Mr. Sapp: 
 
Please allow this to serve as an official request to extend Agreement Y2314, Franklin 
County CARES Act between the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners and 
the Florida Division of Emergency Management.  
 
We will be submitting a revised spend plan with an estimated timeline by the deadline of 
February 5, 2021. 
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ricky Jones 
Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 
Chairman 
 

 

REPLY TO:  □ 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

33 MARKET STREET, SUITE 203 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-8861, EXT. 100 

(850) 653-4795 FAX 

REPLY TO:  X 
PLANNING & BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

34 FORBES STREET, SUITE 1 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-9783 

(850) 653-9799 FAX 

 

168

A.



 

 

MEETING DATE: February 2, 2021 

NAME/DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Deborah Belcher, Roumelis Planning and Development 
Services, Inc., CDBG Grant Administrator for Franklin 
County 

TOTAL ATTACHMENTS: 0 

============================================================================ 

Action Items: 

 

None 

 

 
Information Items: 
 

1. DEO is finalizing the application process for another type of CDBG grant, relating to COVID-
19.  The application cycle opens February 1, 2021, with Pre-applications due March 15, 
2021.  Potentially eligible projects will proceed into a detailed competitive process 
afterwards.  This grant can be used for a variety of activities that prevent, prepare for and 
respond to the Coronavirus pandemic.  The Board directed me to pursue applying for 
funding for expanding Broadband service.  I “attended” a webinar 1/26/2021 during which 
DEO discussed the CDBG-CV program.  They reiterated the importance of targeting projects 
to low/moderate income groups, but were short on answers about specific things that could 
be funded (except for a lot of “no” answers). 
 
I think we should pursue a Project/Planning grant, which includes some study of the 
broadband coverage, providers, minimum customer base, timeframe for providing service, 
costs, customer fees, etc. as well as planning the project area based upon the study, and the 
funding for the actual project. The projects should be complete by mid-2022, and with 
DEO’s slow award process, it will be a challenge to meet that schedule.   
 
As I get more information from DEO, I will coordinate with Michael Morón regarding 
scheduling additional discussion with the Board, and conducting a public hearing. 

169

B.



170

B.



171

B.



172

B.



173

B.


	Top
	A.	Minutes 020221
	January 19.2021 Regular Meeting

	A.	Road Department 020221
	Road Dept February 2, 2021 BCC Report

	A.	Solid Waste 020221
	Solid Waste Director Agenda 2221

	A.	EM Action 020221
	RESOLUTION Mitigation Franklin County Board of County Commissioners
	EM Board Report 020221
	LMS Appendix B - Franklin County LMS Project List_ November 2020

	A.	Airport Manager 020221
	Airport Manager Report 020221

	A.	ARPC 020221
	AP_PublicMeeting_BOCC_Jan19_2021

	A.	FM/GC Action 020221
	Dewberry FEMA Funded Recovery Agreement
	Dewberry Task Order Island View Park
	Project Scope Island View Park
	AVCON Task Order 7 Airport Fuel Farm Project

	B.	FM/GC Informational 020221
	Alligator Drive Notice to Receive Sealed Bids

	A.	CC Action 020221
	Small County Coalition - Vaccine Program Observations and Suggestions - Final w Executive Summary 
	Let DEM Vaccines
	Franklin Co EOC - CONCEPT
	Resolution for EMS County Grant 2021
	Tax Collector Budget Officer Resolution
	Franklin_S16-20-09-02_FederalGrantAgreement_9.30.2020
	Franklin_20-04-06_RuralCountyGrant_5.4.2020 (1)
	CS Admin. Policy 94
	CS Admin. Policy 91
	CS sub-desig-franklin 1
	CARES Extension

	B.	CC Informational 020221
	CDBG BOCC report 2021-2-2
	ANERR burn maps
	ARPC Notes 2
	ARPC Notes 1

	Bottom

